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passed on the savings on refinancing to the borrowers.  Most of the resulting loss is the loan 
refinancing pass-through expense of $17.5 million.  

PPRF Indentures
The PPRF maintains a General Indenture of Trust (Senior Lien) and a Subordinated Indenture of 
Trust (Subordinate Lien). At the end of Fiscal Year 2017, there were 693 loans totaling $1.4 
billion outstanding.  This represents an increase of 11% from $1.1 billion in 2016 primarily as a 
result of increased bond issuances and loan closings.  Most (75%) of the revenue from the PPRF 
loans are pledged to the Senior Lien Indenture, with the balance (25%) pledged to the 
Subordinate Lien Indenture.  In terms of outstanding principal, the Senior Lien Indenture loans 
comprise 82.4% of the total. 
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As of October 15, 2017, the Senior Lien is rated AAA and the Subordinate Lien is rated AAA by 
Standard & Poor’s, and the Senior Lien is rated Aa1 by Moody’s and the Subordinate Lien is 
rated Aa2 by Moody’s. In order to maintain these ratings, the PPRF holds reserves and credit 
enhancements. These include the Common Debt Service Reserve Fund, Supplemental Credit 
Reserve Fund (SCRF), and pooled borrower debt service reserve. The Common Debt Service 
Reserve is subject to the General Indenture of Trust for the Senior Lien and the Supplemental 
Credit Reserve Fund is subject to the Subordinated Indenture governing the subordinate 
lien.  Borrower reserves are pledged to the individual loans.  On July 5, 2017, the Contingent 
Liquidity Account was deactivated and the funds were transferred to the Trustee to establish the 
Supplemental Credit Reserve Fund.  On July 28, 2017, Standard & Poor’s upgraded the 
subordinate lien from AA/Stable to AAA/Stable.

Governmental Gross Receipts Tax 
The Governmental Gross Receipts Tax (GGRT) is a tax imposed on the gross receipts of state 
and local governments for services rendered to customers such as water, sewer, and solid waste 
collection. Three quarters (75%) of GGRT collections are appropriated to the PPRF by statute. 
NMFA’s share of GGRT collections was $29.4 million in 2017, up 4.5% from 2016. This total 
includes amounts appropriated from the PPRF by the Legislature that are not needed for 
payments under the Indenture and Subordinated Indenture in order to fund various legislative 
initiatives. The GGRT funds are used: 

� As a credit enhancement for the PPRF bonds. In the event of defaults on loans, GGRT 
funds can be used to make up for any shortfall in funds available for bond payments. 

� To fund loans to borrowers, especially smaller loans which NMFA may choose to not 
reimburse in a bond issue. 

� To pay operating expenses of the PPRF. 
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Other Programs
The PPRF accounts for a large portion of total NMFA activity. At June 30, 2017, the 
relationships were as follows: 

PPRF Total NMFA % PPRF
Total assets $1.9 billion $2.1 billion 90.5

Net position $271.9 million $505.4 million 53.8

Revenues $77.8 million $97.6 million 79.7

There are many other programs administered by NMFA, some of which are loan programs and 
some of which are grant programs. These include the Drinking Water Revolving Loan Fund, 
Colonias Infrastructure Fund, and economic development programs such as New Market Tax 
Credits.

The Drinking Water Revolving Loan Fund program received $5.7 million less in grant 
revenues and expenses than in Fiscal Year 2016. This decrease was due to the slower rate of 
requisitions on grant subsidies awarded for qualifying drinking water facility projects in New 
Mexico. This decrease was partially offset by a $0.7 million increase in the Colonias 
Infrastructure (CIF) program grant activity in Fiscal Year 2017.  The number of approved CIF 
projects increases as more funding is available. 

Since 2010, a for-profit limited liability company operated by NMFA (FNM LLC) was awarded 
a total of $246 million through the allocation of New Markets Tax Credits by the U.S. Treasury 
Department. Under this program, FNM LLC provides federal income tax credits to incentivize 
businesses to create jobs and otherwise contribute to the economic development of the State. 
During Fiscal Year 2017, FNM LLC made three awards totaling $19.4 million, bringing the 
total awards made to $178.5 million through 17 projects. The tax credits have no impact on the 
financial statements of NMFA as they are held by Finance New Mexico, LLC (FNMLLC). 
NMFA does incur certain expenses to administer the program. Fees charged to applicants and 
recipients of the credits are minimal. In Fiscal Year 2017, NMFA received $0.9 million in fees 
charged to the projects in this program. Fees charged to applicants and recipients of the credits 
are minimal. 

Contacting NMFA’s Financial Management 
This financial report is designed to provide citizens, taxpayers, customers, legislators, 
investors, and creditors with a general overview of NMFA’s finances and to demonstrate 
NMFA’s accountability for the money it receives. Substantial additional information is 
available on NMFA’s website at www.nmfa.net. If you have any questions about this report or 
need additional financial information, contact: 

New Mexico Finance Authority 
(NMFA) 207 Shelby Street 

Santa Fe, New Mexico 87501 
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2017 2016

Assets
Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Unrestricted 22,761,512$         15,433,532$         

Restricted 218,397,691         135,135,587         

Interest receivable 5,370,899             8,505,073             

Grants and other receivable 13,271                  890,213                

Prepaid rent 19,500                  19,500                  

Administrative fees receivable 445,996                190,938                

Loans receivable, net of allowance 115,007,192        103,129,270        

Total current assets 362,016,061         263,304,113         

Noncurrent assets

Restricted investments 385,451,491         332,151,402         

Loans receivable, net of allowance 1,375,061,044      1,248,615,416      

Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation 616,594               278,916               

Total assets 2,123,145,190      1,844,349,847     

Deferred Outflows of Resources

Deferred loss on refunding 843,732               823,233               

Total deferred outflows of resources 843,732               823,233               

Liabilities
Current liabilities

Accounts payable 302,821                307,297                

Accrued payroll 243,439                176,438                

Compensated absences 328,848                332,213                

Bond interest payable 4,183,050             3,525,287             

Undisbursed loan proceeds 226,600,234         135,624,986         

Advanced loan payments 86,308,780           83,008,008           

Bonds payable, net 123,840,000         78,040,000           

Other liabilities 619,727               532,591               

Total current liabilities 442,426,899         301,546,820         

Noncurrent liabilities

Bonds payable 1,170,459,183     1,036,408,718     

Total liabilities 1,612,886,082     1,337,955,538     

Deferred Inflows of Resources

Deferred gain on refunding 5,663,528            1,575,177            

Total deferred inflows of resources 5,663,528            1,575,177            

Net Position
Net investment in capital assets 616,594                278,916                

Restricted for program commitments 486,992,135         495,576,466         

Unrestricted 17,830,583          9,786,983            

Total net position 505,439,312$      505,642,365$      
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2017 2016
Operating Revenues

Interest on loans 47,865,124$        51,736,376$        

Administrative fees revenue 5,701,200            7,049,654            

Interest on investments 946,513              2,195,762           

Total operating revenues 54,512,837         60,981,792         

Operating Expenses

Bond interest expense 51,088,846          45,756,069          

Grants to others 51,299,208          47,888,370          

Loan refinancing pass-through 17,476,331          21,455,228          

Salaries and benefits 4,463,828            4,515,210            

Bond issuance costs 2,847,995            1,525,161            

Professional services 2,570,063            2,389,037            

Other operating costs 1,236,970            1,586,001            

Provision for loan losses 458,701               2,241                   

Interest expense 395,624               296,138               

Rent and utilities 389,092               374,327               

Administrative fees 112,433               87,289                 

Depreciation expense 3,240                  2,191                  

Total operating expenses 132,342,331       125,877,262       

Net operating loss (77,829,494)        (64,895,470)        

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)

Appropriation revenue 34,578,969          33,127,879          

Federal Grant Revenue 8,511,355            14,255,306          

Transfers from the State of New Mexico 44,943,059          42,347,680          

Transfers to the State of New Mexico (10,406,942)        (19,199,552)        

Increase (Decrease) in net position (203,053)              5,635,843            

Net position, beginning of year 505,642,365       500,006,522       

Net position, end of year 505,439,312$     505,642,365$     
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2017 2016

Cash flows from operating activities

Cash paid for employee services (3,748,240)$         (3,687,143)$         

Cash paid to vendors for services (4,000,907)           (5,484,958)           

Loan payments received 202,654,868        204,461,979        

Loans funded (247,161,099)       (199,124,937)       

Grants to local governments (51,299,208)         (47,888,370)         

Cash received from federal government for revolving loan funds 8,511,355            14,255,306          

Interest on loans 50,999,298          49,888,804          

Administrative fees received 5,701,200           7,049,750           

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities (38,342,733)        19,470,431         

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities

Appropriations received from the State of New Mexico 34,578,969          33,127,879          

Cash transfers from the State of New Mexico 44,943,059          42,347,680          

Cash transfers to the State of New Mexico (10,406,942)         (19,199,552)         

Proceeds from the sale of bonds, including premiums 407,221,842        241,738,642        

Payment of bonds (216,100,000)       (168,518,000)       

Bond issuance costs (2,847,995)           (1,525,161)           

Bond interest expense paid (57,638,425)         (60,370,113)         

Loan refinancing pass-through to borrowers (17,476,331)        (21,455,228)        

Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities 182,274,177       46,146,147         

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of investments (308,018,209)       (306,642,740)       

Sale of investments 253,470,040        255,299,434        

Interest received on investments 1,547,727            1,548,894            

Capital assets (340,918)             (276,240)             

Net cash used in investing activities (53,341,360)        (50,070,652)        

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 90,590,084          15,545,926          

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 150,569,119       135,023,193       

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year 241,159,203$     150,569,119$

Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents

Unrestricted cash and cash equivalents 22,761,512$        15,545,926$

Restricted cash and cash equivalents 218,397,691       135,023,193       

Total cash and cash equivalents 241,159,203$     150,569,119$
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2017 2016

Reconciliation of net operating loss to net cash 
provided by (used in) operating activities
Net operating loss (77,829,494)$       (64,895,470)$       

Adjustments to change in net position

Depreciation 3,240                   2,191                   

Amortization on bond premiums (11,271,377)         (15,675,598)         

Provision for loan losses 458,701               2,241                   

Interest on investments (946,513)              (2,195,762)           

Bond interest paid 62,156,581          61,042,768          

Loan refinancing pass-through to borrowers 17,476,331          21,455,228          

Bond issuance costs 2,847,995            1,525,161            

Cash received from federal grants 8,511,355            14,255,306          

Interest expense 395,624               296,138               

Changes in assets and liabilities

Interest receivable 3,134,174            (1,847,572)           

Grants and other receivable 876,942               60,189                 

Administrative fees receivable (255,058)              96                        

Loans receivable, net of allowance (138,323,550)       (66,848,505)         

Accounts payable (4,476)                  62,396                 

Accrued payroll 67,001                 63,722                 

Compensated absences (3,365)                  46,290                 

Undisbursed loan proceeds 90,975,248          63,684,986          

Advanced loan payments 3,300,772            8,675,959            

Other liabilities 87,136                (239,333)             

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities (38,342,733)$      19,470,431$       
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2017 2016

Assets

Cash held by Trustee 31,605,343         58,118,533         

Total assets 31,605,343$       58,118,533$       

Liabilities
Debt service payable 3,889,860$          1,522,990$          

Program funds held for the NM Department of Transportation 27,715,483         56,595,543         

Total liabilities 31,605,343$       58,118,533$       



New Mexico Finance Authority
Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2017 and 2016 

20 

1) Nature of Organization 

The New Mexico Finance Authority (“NMFA”), a component unit of the State of New 
Mexico (the “State”), is a public body politic and corporate, separate and apart from the 
state constituting a governmental instrumentality, organized and existing pursuant to the 
New Mexico Finance Authority Act (the “Act”) created by the Laws of 1992 Chapter 61, 
as amended. NMFA has broad powers to provide financing for an array of infrastructure 
and economic development projects.  The Act also provides for long-term planning and 
assessment of state and local capital needs and improves cooperation among the 
executive and legislative branches of state government and local governments in 
financing public projects. 

NMFA’s governing board is composed of eleven members.  The Secretary of the 
Department of Finance and Administration; the Secretary of the Economic Development 
Department; the Secretary of the Energy, Minerals and Natural Resources Department; 
and the Secretary of the Environment Department; the Executive Director of the New 
Mexico Municipal League; and the Executive Director of the New Mexico Association of 
Counties are ex-officio members of the board with voting privileges. The Governor, with 
the advice and consent of the Senate, appoints to the NMFA Board.  The Board’s 
membership must include the Chief Financial Officer of a New Mexico institution of 
higher education and four other members who are residents of the State. The appointed 
members serve at the pleasure of the Governor. 

NMFA issues loans to entities pursuant to the rules and regulations governing the Public 
Projects Revolving Fund Program (PPRF). The PPRF provides low cost financing to 
local government entities for a variety of infrastructure projects throughout the State. The 
PPRF Program receives 75 percent of the Governmental Gross Receipts Tax collected by 
the State of New Mexico pursuant to section 7-1-6.1 NMSA, 1978.  NMFA may issue 
bonds in amounts deemed necessary to provide sufficient money for the purposes set 
forth by the Act. During fiscal years 2017 and 2016, NMFA transferred $10,000,000, and 
$10,500,000 respectively, from collections of  NMFA’s portion of the Governmental 
Gross Receipts Tax not needed for payments under the General Indenture and 
Subordinated Indenture to the state’s general fund for purposes permitted by law.   Bonds 
are issued under a Master Indenture as well as individual Series Indentures, proceeds and 
covenants of which are administered through a trust relationship established by contract 
with a trust company or bank bearing trust powers (Trustee) and NMFA.

NMFA may also serve as conduit issuer of revenue bonds for other governmental 
agencies.  This activity is reported as an Agency Fund. 

NMFA manages the Drinking Water State Revolving Loan Program (DWRLF) and the 
Water Trust Board Program (WTB). 



New Mexico Finance Authority
Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2017 and 2016 

21 

The DWRLF provides low cost financing for the construction of and improvements to 
drinking water facilities throughout New Mexico in order to protect drinking water 
quality and public health. This program is primarily funded through a federal 
capitalization grant where the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) and the State 
20% cost share. 

The WTB program provides grants and interest free loans to water projects supporting 
water use efficiency, resource conservation and protection, and fair distribution and 
allocation of water. In the accompanying statements, the receipts of funds for the WTB 
program are reflected as Transfers from the State of New Mexico in the amount of 
$30,527,900 and $28,645,725 at June 30, 2017 and 2016, respectively. 

Other significant programs and financing administered by NMFA include: 

� The New Markets Tax Credit Program (NMTC) ,whereby NMFA acts as managing 
member in Finance New Mexico, LLC, a subsidiary for-profit company which has 
received allocations of federal tax credits under the New Markets Tax Credit 
Program. 

� The Economic Development Program (ED) provides comprehensive financing tools 
to stimulate economic development projects statewide. 

� The Primary Care Capital Fund (PCC) is a revolving loan program which provides 
financial assistance to eligible rural primary care health clinics for infrastructure, 
construction and capital equipment purchases. These loans provide 20 percent annual 
loan forgiveness if the borrower provides to a contract-for-services to provide 
medical care free or at reduced prices to sick and indigent clients. 

� The Local Government Planning Fund Program (LGPF) provides grants to qualified 
entities on a per project basis for water and wastewater related studies, long-term 
water management plans, economic development plans, and infrastructure plans. 

� The State Loans fund several capital projects for the State. NMFA issues bonds, 
secured by authorized distributions of cigarette excise taxes, state gross receipts tax or 
court facilities fees, for the purpose of designing, constructing, equipping and 
furnishing additions and improvements to state facilities.  

� The Colonias Infrastructure Act appropriates to NMFA 4.5% of the senior lien 
severance tax bond proceeds for loans and grants to certain communities in southern 
New Mexico that lack basic infrastructure for water and wastewater, solid waste 
disposal, flood and drainage control, and roads.  In the accompanying statements, the 
receipts of funds for Colonias are reflected as Transfers from the State of New 
Mexico in the amount of $14,415,159 and $13,701,955 at June 30, 2017 and 2016, 
respectively. 

� Through a Memorandum of Understanding entered into with the New Mexico 
Economic Development Department, NMFA received federal State Small Business 
Credit Initiative (SSBCI) funds to help increase the flow of capital to small 
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businesses by mitigating bank risk.  NMFA uses the funds to buy loan participations 
from banks for economic development projects under a program marketed as the 
Collateral Support Participation Program. 

NMFA is not subject to the supervision or control of any other board, bureau, department 
or agency of the State, except as specifically provided in the Act. Bonds and other 
obligations issued by NMFA under the provisions of the Act are not a debt or liability of 
the State or any subdivision thereof. The NMFA Oversight Committee was created by the 
Act and its membership is appointed by the Legislative Council to provide legislative 
oversight. 

The financial statements include the accounts of NMFA and its blended component unit, 
Finance New Mexico, LLC (FNMLLC). All intercompany transactions and balances are 
eliminated. The condensed financial statements of FNMLLC are disclosed in Note 14. 

2) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

Accounting Principles 
The financial statements of NMFA have been prepared in accordance with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America as applied to governmental 
units and funds. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the standard-
setting body for governmental accounting and financial reporting. 

Basis of Presentation 
The financial statements of NMFA have been prepared using the economic resources 
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. All of NMFA’s activities, except 
those in which NMFA acts as an agent, are reported as an enterprise fund. Enterprise 
funds are used for activities for which a fee is charged to external users for goods and 
services. 

NMFA distinguishes operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items. 
Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing financial services in 
connection with on-going operations. Primary operating revenues include financing 
income and fees charged to program borrowers. Operating expenses include interest 
expense, program support, as well as funds granted to others in the form of loan 
forgiveness and other subsidies to governmental entities. 

Non-operating items consist primarily of governmental gross receipts, other tax 
distributions, including cigarette tax, and WTB designations, are reported as 
appropriations, grant revenue, and transfers-out for excess distributions and reversions of 
prior year appropriated revenue. 
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Revenues from grants that are restricted for specific uses are recognized as revenues and 
as receivables when the related costs are incurred. When restricted resources meet the 
criteria to be available for use and unrestricted resources are also available, NMFA uses 
restricted resources first. Expenses are recorded when they are incurred. Expenses 
charged to federal programs are recorded utilizing the cost principles prescribed or 
permitted by the various funding sources. 

Agency Funds 
Agency Funds are used to report resources held by NMFA in a purely custodial capacity. 
These funds result from bond transactions in which NMFA acts as fiscal agent for the 
New Mexico Department of Transportation (the “Department”). The amounts reported as 
agency funds do not belong to NMFA and are held in separate accounts on NMFA’s 
books in the name of the Department. Accordingly, all assets held and reported in the 
Agency Funds are offset by a corresponding liability. 

Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments 
NMFA considers all highly liquid financial instruments with a maturity of three months 
or less when purchased to be cash equivalents. Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash 
on deposit with Wells Fargo Bank and the Bank of Albuquerque which also acts as bond 
trustee. Certain proceeds of NMFA’s bonds, as well as certain resources set aside for 
their repayment are invested in certain allowable securities.

In fiscal year 2016, NMFA implemented GASB 72, Fair Value Measurement and 
Application.  Fair value is the amount that would be received on the sale of an asset or 
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the 
measurement date.  The statement provides guidance for determining a fair value 
measurement for financial reporting purposes.  The statement also provides guidance for 
applying fair value to certain investments and disclosures related to all fair value 
measurements. 

Accounts Receivable 
Accounts receivable consists of payments due from governmental entities, administrative 
fees due from projects, and other receivables arising from the normal course of 
operations.

Loans Receivable 
Loans are carried at amounts advanced, net of collections and reserves for loan losses, if 
any. Loans that become past due as to principal and interest are evaluated for 
collectability. Generally, loans are not placed on nonaccrual status if they are sufficiently 
insured, guaranteed, or collateralized. 

The allowance for loan losses is maintained to cover possible losses inherent in the loan 
portfolio based on management’s evaluation of the loan portfolio, giving consideration to 
various factors, including collateral value, past loan loss experience, current facts and 
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economic conditions. The allowance is based on management’s estimates, and ultimate 
losses may vary from the current estimates. These estimates are reviewed periodically 
and any necessary adjustments are reported as a charge to income in the period they 
become known. 

State Loans Receivable 
State Loans receivable consist of amounts due from the State based on legislated 
appropriations of specified taxes for repayment of certain bonds issued by NMFA on 
behalf of State entities. The related statutes direct NMFA to issue bonds and make 
proceeds available to specified State entities to fund various projects. The statutes 
appropriate a portion of pledged future taxes or fees to fund the payment of the related 
bonds. No allowance has been established, as all such receivables are considered 
collectable. 

Capital Assets 
Capital assets are recorded at historical cost and depreciated over their estimated useful 
lives. Donated capital assets are recorded at their estimated fair value at the date of 
donation. Additions, improvements and other capital outlays individually exceeding 
$5,000 that significantly extend the useful life of an asset are capitalized. 

Estimated useful life is management’s estimate of how long the asset is expected to meet 
service demands. Straight-line depreciation is used, based on estimated useful lives 
ranging from three to seven years. 

Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources 
The statement of net position, where applicable, includes separate sections for deferred 
outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources. Deferred outflows of resources 
represent consumption of net position that applies to future periods that will be 
recognized as an expense in future periods. Deferred inflows of resources represent an 
acquisition of net position that applies to future periods and will be recognized as 
revenues in future periods. 

Bond Discounts and Premiums 
Bond premiums and discounts are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds. 
Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount. 

Loan Refinancing Pass-Through 
Loan Refinancing pass-through expenses are bond premiums associated with certain 
refinanced loans passed through by NMFA to the respective borrowers. The refinanced 
loans were associated with certain bond premiums which reduced the outstanding 
principal of the associated loans.  The reductions resulted in a loan refinancing pass-
through expense to NMFA.  For fiscal years 2017 and 2016, loan refinancing pass-
through expenses were $17,476,331 and $21,455,228, respectively 
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Compensated Absences 
Full-time employees with ten years or less employment with NMFA are entitled to fifteen 
days’ vacation leave each fiscal year. Employees with more than ten years’ service 
receive twenty days per fiscal year. When employees terminate, they are compensated at 
their current hourly rate for accumulated unpaid vacation leave. 

Full-time employees are entitled to twelve days of sick leave each fiscal year. When 
employees terminate, they are compensated at twenty-five (25%) of their current hourly 
rate of accumulated unpaid sick leave up to 320 hours. Part-time employees accrue 
vacation leave and sick leave on a prorated basis based on the number of hours they 
work. Accrued compensated absences are recorded and liquidated in the PPRF operating 
fund.  Historically, the year-end balances are used within one-year thus the compensated 
absence liability is recorded as a current liability. 

Undisbursed Loan Proceeds 
Undisbursed loan proceeds represent loan amounts awaiting disbursement to loan 
recipients. Funds are not automatically disbursed in their entirety when a loan closes. 
Proceeds are disbursed as the related project costs are incurred. The vast majority of the 
balance in undisbursed loan proceeds is for loans in the PPRF program. 

 Advanced Loan Payments
Advanced loan payments represent the amounts received from loan recipients which have 
not been applied as a payment against their loan as well as debt service reserve accounts 
funded from the loan proceeds.  NMFA applies loan payments semi-annually, therefore, 
any payments received prior to being applied to the loan are held in an account which 
earns interest and the interest is credited to the borrower. These funds are held by the 
trustee and in accounts at the State Treasurer’s office. The balance of advanced loan 
payments was $86,308,780 and $83,008,008 at June 30, 2017 and 2016. 

Net Position 
The difference between assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, and deferred 
inflows of resources, is referred to as net position. Net position is categorized as net 
investment in capital assets (net of related debt), restricted, or unrestricted based on the 
following:

Net investment in capital assets is intended to reflect the portion of net position which is 
associated with capital assets less outstanding capital asset related debt. The net of related 
debt is the debt less the outstanding liquid assets and any associated unamortized cost.  
NMFA has no capital asset related debt. 
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Restricted net position reflects the portion of net position with third-party (statutory, bond 
covenant or granting agency) limitations on their use. When there is an option, NMFA 
spends restricted resources first. 

The following lists significant programs and the associated restricting statutes and bond 
covenants:

 PPRF  6-21-6 NMSA 1978; General and Subordinated Indentures of Trust 
 DWRLF 6-21A-4 NMSA 1978; EPA Capitalization Grant Agreements 
 WTB  72-4A-9 NMSA 1978 
 NMTC  6-25-6.1 NMSA 1978; NMTC Allocation Agreement 
 ED  6-25-1 NMSA 1978 
 PCC  24-1C-4 NMSA 1978 
 LGPF  6-21-6.4 NMSA 1978 
 COLONIAS 6-30-1.0 NMSA 1978 
 SSBCI  6-25-13 NMSA 1978; SSBCI Allocation Agreement 

Unrestricted net position represents the portion of net position not otherwise classified as 
invested in capital assets or restricted net position. 

Income Taxes 
NMFA is a tax-exempt, quasi-governmental organization under Section 115 of the 
Internal Revenue Code. Accordingly, no provision for income taxes is included in the 
accompanying financial statements.  NMFA is subject to other Internal Revenue Code 
sections relating to the tax-exempt status of the bonds issued by NMFA. 

Use of Estimates 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting 
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the 
reported amounts of assets at the date of the financial statements and the reported 
amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting periods. Actual results could 
differ from those estimates. 

Budget
NMFA’s budget represents a financial plan, not a legal constraint; therefore, budgetary 
comparison information is not presented in the financial statements or as required 
supplementary information. 

Reclassification 
Certain comparative amounts in the statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net 
position were reclassified to conform with the current year’s presentation. 
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3) Cash and Cash Equivalents and Investments

NMFA follows GASB No. 40, Deposit and Investment Risk Disclosures. This statement 
requires the disclosure of applicable interest rate, credit, custodial credit, concentration of 
credit and foreign currency risks. 

NMFA’s investments conform to the provisions of the Statements of Investment Policies, 
Objectives and Guidelines dated October 24, 2013. The investment policy applies to all 
of NMFA’s funds, including funds NMFA may manage for others, except for those funds 
where trust indentures, bond resolutions, or other documents or agreements control the 
investment of funds. This policy is NMFA master investment policy and may be 
amended or supplemented as applied to specific categories of funds by adoption of 
addenda by the Board applicable to specific categories of NMFA funds. 

Except where prohibited by statute, trust indenture, or other controlling authority, NMFA 
consolidates cash and reserve balances from all funds to maximize investment earnings 
and to increase efficiencies with regard to investment pricing, safekeeping, and 
administration. Investment income is allocated to the various funds based on their 
respective participation. The primary objectives, in order of priority, of investment 
activity shall be safety, liquidity and yield. 

The policy provides investments are undertaken in a manner that seeks to ensure the 
preservation and principal in the overall portfolio while mitigating credit risk and interest 
rate risk. 

NMFA has Primary Care Capital Program funds invested in the New Mexico State 
Treasurer’s Office (STO) investment pool. State law (Section 8-6-3 NMSA 1978) 
requires investments of these funds be managed by the New Mexico State Treasurer’s 
Office.

Credit Risk 
NMFA minimizes credit risk (the risk of loss due to the failure of securities issuer or 
backer) by limiting investments, prequalifying financial institutions, broker/dealers, 
intermediaries and advisors with which NMFA does business and diversifying the 
investment portfolio to minimize the impact of potential losses from any one type of 
security or from any one individual issuer. 

The New Mexico State Treasurer pools are not rated. 

FNMLLC cash balances are maintained in several accounts in several banks. At times, 
these balances may exceed the federal insurance limits; however, FNMLLC has not 
experienced any losses with respect to its bank balances in excess of government 
provided insurance. Management believes that no significant concentration of credit risk 
exists with respect to these cash balances at June 30, 2017 and 2016. 
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Interest Rate Risk 
NMFA minimizes interest rate risk (the risk that the market value of securities in the 
portfolio will decline due to changes in market interest rates) by structuring the 
investment portfolio so that securities mature to meet cash requirements for ongoing 
operations, thereby avoiding the need to sell securities in the open market prior to 
maturity and by investing operating funds primarily in short-term securities limiting the 
average maturity of the portfolio. 

For the Primary Care Capital program funds invested in the New Mexico State 
Treasurer’s Office investment pool, the New Mexico State Treasurer’s Office has an 
investment policy that limits investment maturities to five years or less on allowable 
investments. This policy is a means of managing exposure to fair value losses arising 
from increasing interest rates. This policy is reviewed and approved annually by the New 
Mexico State Board of Finance. 

For additional GASB 40 disclosure information regarding cash held by the New Mexico 
State Treasurer, the reader should refer to the separate audit report for the New Mexico 
State Treasurer’s Office for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2017 and 2016. 

State General Fund Investment Pool 
NMFA, as required by Section 24-1C-4, NMSA 1978, administers the Primary Care 
Capital Fund (PCC Fund), which was created as a revolving fund in the State Treasurer’s 
Office (STO).  PCC Funds are deposited into the State General Fund Investment Pool 
(SGFIP), as are funds of state agencies, and as of fiscal year 2017 and 2016 totaled 
$1,284,081 and $927,896, respectively, representing less than 1% of total NMFA funds. 

It is important to note that all other funds of NMFA, including Public Project Revolving 
Funds that are subject to the General and Subordinated Indentures of Trust, are held 
outside of the STO with a Trustee and secured in accordance with NMFA’s Investment 
Policy. 
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Permitted Investments 
As provided in Sections 6-21-6 and 6-21-5 of the Act, money pledged for or securing 
payment of bonds issued by NMFA shall be deposited and invested as provided in the 
bond resolution, trust indenture or other instrument under which the bonds were issued. 
The following table identifies the investment types permitted by the investment policy: 

Description 

Maximum 
Percentage of 

NMFA Funds 1

A Direct and general U.S. Government Obligations (Treasury Bills, Treasury Notes, 
Treasury Bonds) 

100% 

B U.S. Government Agencies (any federal agency or instrumentality notes, bonds, 
debentures, with implicit guarantee of the United States of America) 

75% 

C SEC-registered money market funds with total assets at time of deposit in excess of 
$100,000,0002

100% 

E Certificates of deposits and bank deposits3 20% 

F Commercial paper issued by corporations organized and operating on the United 
States and rated A1 P1 or equivalent by two or more rating services. 

10% 

G Bonds or notes issued by any municipality, county or school district of the State 10% 

H Overnight repurchase agreements4 25% 

I Investment contracts (guaranteed investment contracts (GIC’s) and flexible 
repurchase agreements)1

N/A 

J State Treasurer’s Local Government Investment Pool 50% 

Investment of Bond Proceeds 
All or any portion of the proceeds of bonds or other obligations of NMFA may be 
invested in a GIC or flexible repurchase agreement without regard to the investment 
allocation ranges set forth in the investment policy, if the GIC or repurchase agreement 
provides for disbursement upon request of NMFA in amounts necessary to meet expense 
requirements for the bonds or other obligations. 

1�Limits do not apply to cash invested by trustee per bond indenture. 
2�Money markets must be rated AAA by Standards & Poor and in compliance with the diversification, quality and maturity 

requirements 2a-7 of the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission applicable to money markets with no sales load or 
deferred sales charge. 

3 Interest bearing certificates of deposit or bank deposits must be in banks having a branch location in New Mexico, and all 
principal and interest must be fully insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation or secured by obligations described 
in A) and B) above, registered in the name of NMFA and held by a third party safe-keeping agent, or collateralized as required 
by 6.10.16 NMSA at 102% of the value of the deposit that is not FDIC insured. 

4�Investment contracts and repurchase agreements investments must be fully secured by obligations described in A) and B) above 

with all collateral held by an independent third party safekeeping agent. 
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Cash and equivalents at June 30, 2017 and 2016 were as follows: 

Description 
Balance at 

June 30, 2017 Rated 
Percentage of 

NMFA Funds 1

Bank deposits  $ -      N/A - 

FNMLLC cash equivalents          5,589,385 N/A <1% 

Wells Fargo deposit account   286,899 N/A <1% 

Wells Fargo Repurchase agreement -fully secured2
  520,567 N/A <1% 

Government Money Market Funds             233,478,271  AAA 37% 

PCC funds held with the SGFIP                 1,284,081    N/A <1% 

               Total Cash and Equivalents  $         241,159,203  

               Cash held in agency fund3  $           31,605,343  

Description 
Balance at 

June 30, 2016 Rated 
Percentage of 
NMFA Funds 

Bank deposits  $ 279,043 N/A <1% 

FNMLLC cash equivalents   4,471,961 N/A <1% 

Wells Fargo deposit account   428,167 N/A <1% 

Wells Fargo Repurchase agreement -fully secured2   271,882 N/A <1% 

Government Money Market Funds             144,190,170  AAA 30% 

PCC funds held with the SGFIP                    927,896  N/A <1% 

               Total Cash and Equivalents  $         150,569,119  

               Cash held in agency fund3  $           58,118,533  

    

Maturity Restrictions 
It is the policy of NMFA to diversify investment maturities based on cash flow 
requirements. Unless matched to a specific cash flow, NMFA will invest in securities 
maturing five years or less from date of purchase. 

1 Limits described in the “permitted investments” section above do not apply to cash invested by trustee per bond indenture. 
2 Wells Fargo accounts FDIC insured for $250,000. Remaining is secured by a pledge of NMFA securities in the name of the 

State of New Mexico monitored by the New Mexico State Treasurer’s Office. 
3�All cash held as agent by NMFA is fully collateralized by securities held in the name of NMFA. 
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Investments consist of bond proceeds which are restricted to uses specified in the related 
bond indentures. Such restricted investments at June 30, 2017 and 2016 are comprised of 
the following: 

Description 

Fair Value 
Level 1 at 

June 30, 2017 

Average
Years to 
Maturity 

Percentage of 
NMFA Funds 

U.S. Treasury notes  $ 321,722,370 1.08 51% 

Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation Bonds               63,729,121 1.78 10% 

 Total restricted investments  $ 385,451,491 

Fair Value 
Level 1 at 

June 30, 2016 

Average
Years to 
Maturity 

Percentage of 
NMFA Funds 

U.S. Treasury notes  $ 332,151,402 1.06 69% 

 Total restricted investments  $ 332,151,402 

Fair Value Measurement 
NMFA’s investments measured and reported at fair value are classified according to the 

 following hierarchy: 

 Level 1 – Investments reflect prices quoted in active markets. 

 Level 2 – Investments reflect prices that are based on a similar observable asset  
       either directly or indirectly, which include inputs in markets that are not 
       considered to be active. 

 Level 3 – Investments reflect prices based upon unobservable sources. 

The categorization of investments within the hierarchy is based upon the pricing 
 transparency of the instrument and should not be perceived as the particular investment’s 
 risk. 

At June 30, 2017 and 2016, NMFA’s investments are classified as Level 1.
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4) Loans Receivable 

Loans receivable activity for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2017 and 2016, respectively, 
were as follows: 

Program Description

Term 

(Years) Rates 2016 Increases Decreases 2017

Public Projects Revolving Fund Loans 1 to 30 0% to 6% 1,227,266,976$   323,167,993$      190,380,704$      1,360,054,265$   

Drinking Water State Revolving Loans 1 to 30 0% to 4% 84,866,760          4,972,147            4,396,010            85,442,897$        

Drinking Water State Revolving 

   Loans-ARRA
1 to 20 1%

1,168,531            -                       55,788                 1,112,743$          

Primary Care Capital Fund Loans 10 to 20 3% 3,501,848            -                       334,089               3,167,759$          

Water Projects Fund Loan Grants 10 to 20 0% 27,501,675          7,620,899            3,344,307            31,778,267$        

Smart Money Participation Loans 3 to 20 2% to 5%. 3,786,054            -                       63,052                 3,723,002$          

Behavioral Health Care Loans 15 3% -                       -                       -                       -$                     

Cigarette Tax - Behavioral Health Care 

   Capital Loans
15 3%

912,070               -                       57,348                 854,722$             

Colinias Infrastructure Fund Loans 10 to 20 0% 2,272,268            1,261,662            298,266               3,235,664$          

SSBCI Loans 10 to 20 3% 3,575,329            1,113,646            417,614               4,271,361$          

Child Care Revolving Loans 8 3% 6,918                   -                       6,918                   -                      

1,354,858,429     338,136,347        199,354,096        1,493,640,680     

Less allowance for loan losses 3,113,743            458,701               -                       3,572,444           

Totals 1,351,744,686$  337,677,646$      199,354,096$      1,490,068,236$

Program Description

Term 

(Years) Rates 2015 Increases Decreases 2016

Public Projects Revolving Fund Loans 1 to 30 0% to 6% 1,165,380,200$   245,252,159$      183,365,383$      1,227,266,976$   

Drinking Water State Revolving Loans 1 to 30 0% to 4% 81,627,122          9,618,985            6,379,347            84,866,760          

Drinking Water State Revolving 

   Loans-ARRA
1 to 20 1%

1,235,615            -                       67,084                 1,168,531            

Primary Care Capital Fund Loans 10 to 20 3% 3,879,778            -                       377,930               3,501,848            

Water Projects Fund Loan Grants 10 to 20 0% 24,930,441          5,810,763            3,239,529            27,501,675          

Smart Money Participation Loans 3 to 20 2% to 5%. 3,852,811            -                       66,757                 3,786,054            

Behavioral Health Care Loans 15 3% -                       -                       -                       -                       

Cigarette Tax - Behavioral Health Care 

   Capital Loans
15 3%

973,309               -                       61,239                 912,070               

Pooled Equipment Certificates of 

   Participation Loans
5 to 20 4% to 6.4%

28,000                 -                       28,000                 -                       

Colinias Infrastructure Fund Loans 10 to 20 0% 1,550,806            986,461               264,999               2,272,268            

SSBCI Loans 10 to 20 3% 4,527,971            976,568               1,929,210            3,575,329            

Child Care Revolving Loans 8 3% 13,460                 -                       6,542                   6,918                  

1,287,999,513     262,644,936        195,786,020        1,354,858,429     

Less allowance for loan losses 3,111,502            2,241                   -                       3,113,743           

Totals 1,284,888,011$  262,642,695$      195,786,020$      1,351,744,686$
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The following is a summary of scheduled payments to be collected on loans receivable as 
of June 30, 2017: 

Principal Interest Total

Fiscal year ending June 30

2018 115,007,192$      48,869,349$        163,876,541$      

2019 124,865,491        46,003,642          170,869,133        

2020 112,795,437        42,926,962          155,722,399        

2021 112,250,485        39,581,680          151,832,165        

2022 101,381,936        36,165,237          137,547,173        

2023-2027 418,931,138        135,710,378        554,641,516        

2028-2032 292,954,507        69,973,179          362,927,686        

2033-2037 168,931,485        23,944,135          192,875,620        

2038-2042 35,667,669          4,011,473            39,679,142          

2043-2047 10,855,340          784,533               11,639,873         

Subtotals 1,493,640,680     447,970,568$      1,941,611,248$

Less allowance for loan losses 3,572,444           

Loans receivable, net 1,490,068,236$
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State Loans Receivable 
NMFA has agreements with various state entities relating to the issuance of bonds. 
Pursuant to the underlying legislation and resolutions, the bond proceeds financed various 
state projects in the PPRF. Pursuant to the legislation, the debt service on these bonds is 
payable solely from pledged future revenues from the State and state entities. The 
following activity represents amounts due to NMFA under these agreements during the 
year ended June 30, 2017 and 2016, respectively. These loans are included in the PPRF 
loans above. 

State Entity Revenue Pledge Rates Maturity 2016 Increases Decreases 2017 Due in One Year

Administrative Office of 

the Courts
Court Facilities fees

1.25% to 5.0% 6/15/2025 27,805,000$   -$              2,480,000$   25,325,000$   2,600,000$         

NM Department of 

Health Cigarette excise tax 3.77% to 5.00% 6/1/2037 22,888,200     -                1,324,200     21,564,000     1,304,200           

NM Cultural Affairs State special tax 3.06% to3.82% 2/1/2023 1,155,753       -                162,281        993,472          168,421              

University of New 

Mexico Health Sciences 

Center Cigarette excise tax 4.91% 6/1/2025 23,480,000     -                2,010,000     21,470,000     1,965,000           

NM General Services 

Department

State Gross Receipts 

tax 1.27% to 5.15% 6/1/2039 75,185,354     -                2,463,899     72,721,455     2,530,023           

University of New 

Mexico Health Sciences 

Center Cigarette excise tax 2.13% to 3.94% 4/1/2019 2,298,299       -                763,814        1,534,485       765,443             

Totals 152,812,606$ -$              9,204,194$  143,608,412$ 9,333,087$        

State Entity Revenue Pledge Rates Maturity 2015 Increases Decreases 2016 Due in One Year

Administrative Office of 

the Courts
Court Facilities fees

1.25% to 5.0% 6/15/2025 30,195,000$   -$              2,390,000$   27,805,000$   2,480,000$         

NM Department of 

Health Cigarette excise tax 3.77% to 5.00% 6/1/2037 24,232,400     -                1,344,200     22,888,200     1,324,200           

NM Cultural Affairs State special tax 3.06% to3.82% 2/1/2023 1,319,187       -                163,434        1,155,753       162,281              

University of New 

Mexico Health Sciences 

Center Cigarette excise tax 2.25% to 5.00% Paid 6,895,000       -                6,895,000     -                  -                     

University of New 

Mexico Health Sciences 

Center Cigarette excise tax 3.88% to 5.00% Paid 23,320,000     -                23,320,000   -                  -                     

University of New 

Mexico Health Sciences 

Center Cigarette excise tax 4.91% 6/1/2025 -                  26,200,000   2,720,000     23,480,000     2,010,000           

NM General Services 

Department

State Gross Receipts 

tax 4.25% to 5.00% Paid 42,620,000     -                42,620,000   -                  -                     

NM General Services 

Department
State Gross Receipts 

tax 1.27% to 5.15% 6/1/2039 36,966,300     40,109,054   1,890,000     75,185,354     2,463,899           

University of New 

Mexico Health Sciences 

Center Cigarette excise tax 2.13% to 3.94% 4/1/2019 3,062,483       -                764,184        2,298,299       763,814             

Totals 168,610,370$ 66,309,054$ 82,106,818$ 152,812,606$ 9,204,194$        
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5) Capital Assets 

A summary of changes in capital assets during the fiscal year 2017 and 2016, 
respectively, was as follows: 

Depreciation expense for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2017 and 2016, respectively, 
was $3,240 and $2,191. 

Balance at

June 30, 

2016 Increases Decreases

Balance at

June 30, 

2017

Capital assets not being depreciated

Construction in progress 276,240$             129,326$             -$                     405,566$             

Capital assets being depreciated

Furniture and fixtures 28,665                 17,368                 -                       46,033                 

Computer hardware and software 734,293               194,224               -                       928,517               

Leasehold improvement 8,241                   -                       -                       8,241                  

1,047,439            340,918               -                       1,388,357           

Accumulated depreciation

Furniture and fixtures (28,665)                -                       -                       (28,665)                

Computer hardware and software (731,617)              (3,240)                  -                       (734,857)              

Leasehold improvement (8,241)                  -                       -                       (8,241)                 

(768,523)              (3,240)                  -                       (771,763)             

Net total 278,916$             337,678$             -$                     616,594$            

Balance at

June 30, 

2015 Increases Decreases

Balance at

June 30, 

2016

Capital assets not being depreciated

Construction in progress -$                     276,240$             -$                     276,240$             

Capital assets being depreciated

Furniture and fixtures 28,665                 -                       -                       28,665                 

Computer hardware and software 734,293               -                       -                       734,293               

Leasehold improvement 8,241                   -                       -                       8,241                  

771,199               276,240               -                       1,047,439           

Accumulated depreciation

Furniture and fixtures (28,665)                -                       -                       (28,665)                

Computer hardware and software (729,426)              (2,191)                  -                       (731,617)              

Leasehold improvement (8,241)                  -                       -                       (8,241)                 

(766,332)              (2,191)                  -                       (768,523)             

Net total 4,867$                 274,049$             -$                     278,916$            
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6) Bonds Payable 

Bonds have been issued to provide financing for various NMFA programs and are 
collateralized as follows: 

� Loan Agreements and securities executed and delivered by governmental units in 
consideration for the financing of all or a portion of their respective projects by 
NMFA. 

� Amounts held in the Agreement Reserve Accounts. 

� Additional pledged loans. 

� Revenues received by NMFA from the allocation of NMFA’s portion of the 
Governmental Gross Receipts tax. 

� Revenues pledged through legislation as security for the payment of principal and 
interest on bonds. These revenues include mainly Court Facilities Fees, Cigarette 
Excise and Tax, State Gross Receipts Tax. 
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Bonds payable consist of the following at June 30, 2017 and 2016: 

Bond Series Rate  Maturities  Original Amount June 30, 2017 June 30, 2016

Public Project Revolving Fund Revenue Bonds - Senior Lien Debt
2006 B 4.000% to 5.000% Paid 38,260,000$         -$                     22,730,000$         

2007 E 4.000% to 5.000% Paid 61,945,000           -                       34,085,000           

2008 A 3.250% to 5.000% June 1, 2018 to June 1, 2038 158,965,000         113,065,000         119,080,000         

2008 B 4.000% to 5.000% June 1, 2018 to June 1, 2035 36,545,000           20,725,000           22,520,000           

2008 C 3.250% to 6.000% June 1, 2018 to June 1, 2033 29,130,000           10,305,000           11,490,000           

2009 A 2.000% to 5.000% June 1, 2018 to June 1, 2038 18,435,000           11,370,000           12,310,000           

2009 C 2.500% to 5.000% June 1, 2018 to June 1, 2029 55,810,000           38,975,000           41,355,000           

2009 D-1 3.000% to 4.000% June 1, 2018 to June 1, 2030 13,570,000           6,455,000             7,430,000             

2009 D-2 1.810% to 6.070% June 1, 2018 to June 1, 2036 38,845,000           34,145,000           34,890,000           

2009 E 3.000% to 4.500% June 1, 2018 to June 1, 2019 35,155,000           8,610,000             12,585,000           

2010 A-1 2.000% to 4.500% June 1, 2018 to June 1, 2034 13,795,000           5,060,000             5,670,000             

2010 A-2 3.777% to 5.880% June 1, 2018 to June 1, 2039 15,170,000           12,145,000           12,990,000           

2010 B-1 2.000% to 5.000% June 1, 2018 to June 1, 2035 38,610,000           21,540,000           23,795,000           

2010 B-2 2.230% to 4.740% June 1, 2018 to June 1, 2035 17,600,000           16,775,000           16,950,000           

2011 B-1 0.220% to 4.000% June 1, 2018 to June 1, 2036 42,735,000           23,065,000           25,905,000           

2011 B-2 2.000% to 4.450% June 1, 2018 to June 1, 2031 14,545,000           9,800,000             10,630,000           

2011 C 3.000% to 5.000% June 1, 2018 to June 1, 2036 53,400,000           35,855,000           39,410,000           

2012 A 1.500% to 5.500% June 1, 2018 to June 1, 2038 24,340,000           18,780,000           20,015,000           

2013 A 2.000% to 5.000% June 1, 2018 to June 1, 2038 44,285,000           31,200,000           34,570,000           

2013 B 2.000% to 5.000% June 1, 2018 to June 1, 2036 16,360,000           11,865,000           12,925,000           

2014 B 2.000% to 5.000% June 1, 2018 to June 1, 2035 58,235,000           45,535,000           50,080,000           

2015 B 2.250% to 5.000% June 1, 2018 to June 1, 2045 45,325,000           39,905,000           42,595,000           

2015 C 3.000% to 5.000% June 1, 2018 to June 1, 2035 45,475,000           44,945,000           45,300,000           

2016 A 2.500% to 5.000% June 1, 2018 to June 1, 2036 52,070,000           45,290,000           49,170,000           

2016 C 2.000% to 5.000% June 1, 2018 to June 1, 2046 67,540,000           65,415,000           66,725,000           

2016 D 2.000% to 5.000% June 1, 2018 to June 1, 2046 116,485,000         112,820,000         -                       

2016 E 3.000% to 5.000% June 1, 2018 to June 1, 2046 40,870,000           36,525,000           -                       

2016 F 3.375% to 5.000% June 1, 2018 to June 1, 2046 38,575,000           38,330,000           -                       

2017A 3.000% to 5.000% June 1, 2018 to June 1, 2046 60,265,000           58,825,000           -                       

2017 C 3.000% to 5.000% June 1, 2018 to June 1, 2030 37,675,000 37,675,000           -                      

1,330,015,000 955,000,000         775,205,000        

Outstanding Amount
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Bond Series Rate  Maturities  Original Amount June 30, 2017 June 30, 2016

Public Project Revolving Fund Revenue Bonds - Subordinate Lien Debt

2006 C 4.000% to 5.000% Paid 39,860,000           -                       24,330,000           

2007 A 4.000% to 5.000% Paid 34,010,000           -                       13,115,000           

2007 B 4.750% to 5.000% June 15, 2018 to June 15, 2034 38,475,000           18,195,000           20,495,000           

2007 C 4.250% to 5.250% June 15, 2018 to June 15, 2027 131,860,000         37,500,000           82,485,000           

2013 C-1 2.000% to 4.000% June 15, 2018 to June 15, 2028 3,745,000             2,540,000             2,890,000             

2013 C-2 2.900% to 5.000% June 15, 2018 to June 15, 2029 10,550,000           6,915,000             8,020,000             

2014 A-1 2.000% to 5.000% June 15, 2018 to June 15, 2033 15,135,000           13,490,000           14,055,000           

2014 A-2 4.432% to 4.491% June 15, 2018 to June 15, 2034 16,805,000           12,240,000           13,775,000           

2015 A 3.000% to 5.000% June 15, 2018 to June 15, 2035 63,390,000           56,325,000           59,940,000           

2015 D 4.000% to 5.000% June 15, 2018 to June 15, 2027 29,355,000           25,440,000           27,170,000           

2016 B 5.000% June 15, 2018 to June 15, 2021 8,950,000             6,045,000             7,415,000             

2017 B 2.250% to 5.000% June 15, 2018 to June 15, 2046 68,015,000           62,240,000           -                      

460,150,000         240,930,000         273,690,000        

Subtotal - PPRF Bonds 1,790,165,000 1,195,930,000      1,048,895,000     

Cigarette Tax Revenue Bonds - Behavioral Health Projects 

2006 5.51% Paid 2,500,000             -                       1,250,000            

Total bonds outstanding 1,792,665,000$  1,195,930,000      1,050,145,000      

Add net unamortized premium 98,369,183           64,303,718           

Total bonds payable, net 1,294,299,183      1,114,448,718      

Less current portion of bonds payable (123,840,000)       (78,040,000)        

Noncurrent portion of bonds payable 1,170,459,183$    1,036,408,718$   

Outstanding Amount
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Maturities of bonds payable and interest are as follows: 

The bonds payable activity is as follows: 

Principal Interest Total

Fiscal year ending June 30,

2018 123,840,000$      52,767,555$        176,607,555$      

2019 91,595,000          49,025,830          140,620,830        

2020 91,805,000          45,062,617          136,867,617        

2021 95,410,000          40,695,059          136,105,059        

2022 85,590,000          36,119,234          121,709,234        

2023-2027 342,975,000        124,447,660        467,422,660        

2028-2032 192,825,000        59,550,349          252,375,349        

2033-2037 131,295,000        21,145,792          152,440,792        

2038-2042 31,160,000          4,195,678            35,355,678          

2043-2047 9,435,000            722,850               10,157,850         

1,195,930,000     433,732,624$      1,629,662,624$

Add unamortized premium 98,369,183         

Bonds payable, net 1,294,299,183$

Activity for Fiscal Year 2017
Balance at

June 30, 

2016 Increases Decreases

Balance at

June 30, 

2017

Due within 

One Year

Bonds payable 1,050,145,000$   361,885,000$      216,100,000$      1,195,930,000$   123,840,000$      

Add unamortized premium 64,303,718          45,336,842          11,271,377          98,369,183          -                      

Total 1,114,448,718$  407,221,842$      227,371,377$      1,294,299,183$  123,840,000$     

Activity for Fiscal Year 2016
Balance at

June 30, 

2015 Increases Decreases

Balance at

June 30, 

2016

Due within 

One Year

Bonds payable 1,015,273,000$   203,390,000$      168,518,000$      1,050,145,000$   78,040,000$        

Add unamortized premium 41,630,674          38,348,642          15,675,598          64,303,718          -                      

Total 1,056,903,674$  241,738,642$      184,193,598$      1,114,448,718$  78,040,000$       
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Current and Advance Refunding of Debt 

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017, the PPRF Revenue Refunding Bonds Senior 
Lien 2017C series, issued in the total par amount of $37,675,000, refunded the 
outstanding portion of the PPRF Revenue Bonds Senior Lien 2007E series in the amount 
of $34,672,636.   The refunding resulted in debt service savings over 1 to 15 years of 
$7,299,799 and a Net Present Value (NPV) savings of $5,755,633.

Additionally, during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017, the PPRF Revenue Refunding 
Bonds Senior Lien 2016E series, issued in the total par amount of $40,870,000, refunded 
the outstanding portion of the PPRF Revenue Bonds Senior Lien 2006B series in the 
amount of $24,589,330.   The refunding resulted in debt service savings over 13 to 20 
years of $7,945,508 and a Net Present Value (NPV) savings of $5,954,249.  

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016, the PPRF Revenue Refunding Bonds Senior 
Lien 2016C series, issued in the total par amount of $67,540,000, refunded the 
outstanding portion of the PPRF Revenue Bonds Senior Lien 2006D series in the amount 
of $45,045,908.   The refunding resulted in debt service savings over 15 to 20 years of 
$12,603,391 and a NPV savings to the State of New Mexico of $9,337,876 for the State 
Buildings Projects. 

Additionally, during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016, the PPRF Revenue Refunding 
Bonds Senior Lien 2016A series, issued in the total par amount of $52,070,000, refunded 
the outstanding portions of the 2004A Cigarette Tax Bonds and the PPRF Revenue 
Bonds 2005E series in the amount of $31,396,723.   The refunding resulted in debt 
service savings over the remaining 10 to 15 years of $5,505,790 and NPV savings of 
$5,002,352.

7) Line of Credit 

NMFA maintains a credit facility with Wells Fargo for the PPRF which provides for a 
borrowing limit of up to $100,000,000 for the purpose of obtaining necessary funding, on 
an interim basis, to make loans to qualified entities prior to the issuance, sale and delivery 
of certain Public Project Revolving Fund Revenue Bonds and to reimburse NMFA for 
such loans that have been made. The terms of the credit facility require payment in full of 
any outstanding balance from the proceeds of the next PPRF bond issuance. Interest is 
due monthly on the outstanding balance, and accrues at 70% of U.S. dollar monthly 
LIBOR plus 55 basis points. The LIBOR rate at June 30, 2017, was 1.22%.  NMFA pays 
a 25 basis point fee on the unused portion of the facility. For fiscal year 2017 and 2016, 
the line of credit has no activity and the balance at year end was zero.
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8) Operating Lease Commitment 

NMFA is committed under various lease agreements for office space and office 
equipment. These leases are classified as operating leases. Lease expenditures for the 
years ended June 30, 2017 and 2016, were $389,092 and $374,327. Future minimum 
lease payments are as follows: 

9) Retirement Plans 

The NMFA’s retirement plan was organized under Section 401(a) of the Internal 
Revenue Code. The retirement plan is not subject to the general claims of the creditors of 
NMFA. Each eligible employee participating in the plan must contribute 3% of their 
compensation.  NMFA makes a contribution of 15% of their compensation. Employees 
can make an additional, voluntary contribution of up to 4% of their compensation.  
NMFA also makes a 50% matching contribution on voluntary contributions. Employee 
contributions are 100% vested, and NMFA contributions will vest 100% to the employee 
over five years. The contributions are invested in various mutual funds selected by the 
employee.  NMFA’s contributions for this retirement plan for the years ended June 30, 
2017 and 2016, respectively, were $524,015 and $487,766. Additionally, employee 
contributions for the retirement plan for the year ended June 30, 2017 and 2016, 
respectively, were $169,633 and $151,004. Substantially all full-time employees 
participate in this plan. 

NMFA maintains a retirement plan in accordance with an “eligible deferred 
compensation plan” pursuant to Section 457 of the Internal Revenue Code for its highly 
compensated employees. Employer contributions are limited by IRS Code Section 
457(e)(15)(A). The employee is fully vested at all times. The executive plan was in effect 
for the years ended June 30, 2017 and 2016. 

Fiscal year ending June 30

2018 376,274

2019 383,800

2020 259,255

2021 -

2022 -

Total 1,019,329$
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10) Compensated Absences 

The following changes occurred during the fiscal year in the compensated absences 
liabilities: 

11) Agency Transactions 

NMFA was authorized in 2003 to issue bonds as agent for the New Mexico Department 
of Transportation (NMDOT). Approximately $1.2 billion and $1.3 billion of such bonds 
are outstanding at June 30, 2017 and 2016, respectively. 

Debt service for the bonds is payable solely from certain revenues of the Department of 
Transportation. In the opinion of legal counsel, there is no claim that could be asserted 
against NMFA’s assets for payment of debt service on the bonds; therefore, these bonds 
are not reflected in NMFA’s financial statements.  NMFA receives a biannual fee from 
the Department of Transportation equal to its overhead costs for management of the bond 
issues. The fee is recognized on a cost reimbursement basis. 

12) Contingencies 

Litigation 
In the normal course of operations, NMFA is involved in certain litigation and arbitration 
proceedings involving former employee complaints and subcontractor claims. 

2017

Balance at June 30, 2016 332,213$

Additions 323,227

Deletions (326,592)

Balance at June 30, 2017 328,848

Due within one year 328,848$

2016

Balance at June 30, 2015 285,923$

Additions 315,644

Deletions (269,354)

Balance at June 30, 2016 332,213

Due within one year 332,213$



New Mexico Finance Authority
Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2017 and 2016 

43 

Management and legal counsel believe the outcomes will not have a materially adverse 
impact on the financial position of NMFA. 

Loan Prepayment and Bond Call Provisions 
During the period 2004 to 2008, including PPRF series bonds 2004A and 2008A, loans of 
less than $25 million contained provisions allowing for prepayment after one year 
whereas the related bonds used to fund the loan contained ten-year call provisions.  In the 
event of a loan prepayment prior to the tenth year, NMFA’s bond indentures require the 
substitution of a loan with similar cash flow characteristics or the defeasance of the 
related bond. 

If interest rates at the time of prepayment are lower than the rates on the related bonds, as 
is currently the case, both loan substitution and defeasance will result in NMFA earning 
less on the substituted loan or the defeasance escrow than it will pay on the related bond, 
resulting in a negative cash flow.  NMFA has other funding sources available to pay the 
shortfall, including the proceeds of the loan payoff, reserve funds, and operating cash. 
Management does not believe this condition will have a material adverse impact on the 
financial statements. The variance in prepayment and call periods was eliminated through 
a Board resolution in 2008 so that this condition is eliminated by 2018. The variance in 
prepayment and call periods at June 30, 2017 includes the PPRF 2007B and 2008A bonds 
outstanding in the amount of $131 million and 27 PPRF loans outstanding in the amount 
of $104.4 million pledged to these bonds of which 24 loans in the amount of $42.5 
million had prepayment provisions.  Additionally, at June 30, 2017, 44 loans outstanding 
in the amount of $33.5 million were originally pledged to now retired bonds with 
prepayment and call period variances. 

NMFA is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damages to, and 
destruction of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters.  
NMFA participates in the State of New Mexico self-insurance program (Risk 
Management Program). Under this program, NMFA pays an annual premium to the State 
for the following types of insurance coverage: 

� Workers’ compensation insurance 

� General liability insurance 

� Civil rights 

� Blanket property insurance 

� Boiler and machinery insurance 

� Auto physical damage insurance 

� Crime insurance 

NMFA also carries commercial insurance to cover losses to which it may be exposed 
related to their leased office space. 
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During the year, there were no significant reductions in commercial insurance coverage. 
For the past five years, no insurance settlements exceeded commercial insurance 
coverage.

13) Related Party Transactions 

NMFA has issued bonds or purchased securities for several other state entities to finance 
the construction of certain capital projects. Representatives of two of these entities (the 
Secretary of the New Mexico Department of Finance and Administration and the 
Secretary of the New Mexico Department of Energy, Minerals and Natural Resources) 
are members of NMFA’s Board of Directors. Additionally, a representative serving on 
the Board holds a position as Cabinet Secretary of the New Mexico Environmental 
Department in which NMFA assists the Department in the administration of the State’s 
Drinking Water federal program pursuant to a Memorandum of Understanding. 

14) Finance New Mexico, LLC 

NMFA has invested in and is the managing member of, Finance New Mexico, LLC 
(FNMLLC) which was formed on June 19, 2006, under the laws of the State of New 
Mexico. FNMLLC is an approved Community Development Entity (CDE) that holds 
New Market Tax Credits (NMTC) allocation authority to be used for investment in 
Qualified Active Low-Income Community Businesses (QALICB) pursuant to Section 
45D of the Internal Revenue Code (IRC). 

The principal business objective of FNMLLC is to provide nontraditional investment 
capital to underserved markets and enhance the return on such investments by providing 
its members with new market tax credits. In general, under Section 45D of the Internal 
Revenue Code, a qualified investor in a CDE can receive the tax credits to be used to 
reduce Federal taxes. 

In accordance with the operating agreement of FNMLLC, 99% of profits, losses and cash 
flows are allocated to NMFA, the managing member, and 1% to New Mexico 
Community Capital, the non-managing member. 

In 2015, management re-evaluated how to report NMFA’s interest in FNMLLC for 
financial statement purposes. Management evaluated a number of criteria as stated in 
GASB Statements Number 39 and 61, amendments of GASB Statement Number 14. The 
basic, but not the only criterion, is FNMLLC’s financial accountability to NMFA. 
Financial accountability is measured through the degree to which NMFA can appoint a 
voting majority of the governing body, impose its will, ascertain a potential financial 
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benefit, or face a potential financial burden with regard to the potential component unit. 
Based on the above criterion, it was determined that the FNMLLC is a blended 
component unit of NMFA. As such, NMFA has consolidated the FNMLLC’s financial 
statement amounts within NMFA’s New Market Tax Credit program. The condensed 
component unit information for FNMLLC and subsidiaries, for the year ended June 30, 
2017 and 2016 were as follows: 

2017 2016

Statements of Net Position 
Assets
Cash 5,589,385$          4,471,961$          

Asset management fee receivable 214,999               844,694               

Investment in Limited Liability Companies 13,271                14,819                

Total assets 5,817,655$         5,331,474$         

Liabilities
Accrued Expenses 94,848$               90,095$               

Due to affiliate 488,441              1,279,941           

Total liabilities 583,289               1,370,036            

Net Position
Unrestricted 5,234,366           3,961,438           

Total liabilities and net position 5,817,655$         5,331,474$         
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Statements Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net 
Position

2017 2016

Operating Income

Interest income 1,698$                 372$                    

Sponsor fee income 582,120               232,500               

Exit fee 764,281               3,382,250            

Asset management fee income 719,517              666,409              

Total operating income 2,067,616           4,281,531           

Operating Expense

Sponsor fee expense 533,731               213,173               

Management fee expense -                       584,795               

Professional fees 83,450                 59,900                 

Gross receipt tax 166,741               352,913               

Miscellaneous administrative expenses 11,488                9,479                  

Total operating expenses 795,410              1,220,260           

Net operating income 1,272,206            3,061,271            

Nonoperating Income

Share of income from investment in limited liability companies 722                     131                     

Increase in net position 1,272,928            3,061,402            

Net position, beginning of year 3,961,438           900,036              

Net position, end of year 5,234,366$         3,961,438$         
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Statement of Cash Flows 2017 2016

Cash flows from operating activities
Increase in net position 1,272,928$          3,061,402$          

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash

provided by operating activities

Share of income from investment in limited liability companies (722)                     (131)                     

Decrease in assets

Asset Management Fee Receivable 629,695               90,651                 

Increase in liabilities

Accounts payable 4,753                  31,017                

Net cash provided by operating activities 1,906,654           3,182,939           

Cash flows from noncapital fanancing activities

Advance (Repayment) of loan to afiliate (791,500)             632,748              

Net cash provided (used) by noncapital financing activities (791,500)             632,748              

Cash flows from investing activities

Distributions from (net investments in) limited liability companies 2,270                  (1,182)                 

Net cash provided (used) by investing activities 2,270                  (1,182)                 

Net increase in cash 1,117,424            3,814,505            

Cash, beginning of year 4,471,961           657,456              

Cash, end of year 5,589,385$         4,471,961$         
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APPENDIX B 
 

EXTRACTS OF CERTAIN PROVISIONS OF THE INDENTURE 

The following statements are extracts, supplementing the information in the body of the Official Statement, 
of certain defined terms in and provisions of the Indenture.  These extracts do not purport to be complete.  Please 
refer to the Indenture itself for a full and complete statement of such provisions.  During the offering period of the 
Series 2018D Bonds, copies of the Indenture will be available at the principal office of the Municipal Advisor.  
Subsequent to the offering of the Series 2018D Bonds, copies of the Indenture may be obtained from the Trustee.  
See “ADDITIONAL INFORMATION.” 

Certain Definitions 

“Account” or “Accounts” means one or more of the special trust accounts created and established pursuant 
to the Indenture. 

“Act” means the New Mexico Finance Authority Act, being Sections 6-21-1 through 6-21-31, inclusive, 
NMSA 1978, as amended and as the same may hereafter be amended and supplemented. 

“Additional Bonds” means any Bonds of the NMFA, authorized and issued under the Indenture, in 
compliance with the Indenture, except for the Series l995A-B Bonds. 

“Additional Pledged Loans” means any additional loans or securities which (i) were made or purchased by 
the NMFA from amounts on deposit in the Public Project Revolving Fund and (ii) the payments of principal and 
interest on which have been specifically pledged by the NMFA to the payment of the Bonds and other amounts due 
under the Indenture.  No such loans or securities will be deemed to be Additional Pledged Loans unless the Trustee 
has received written notice from the NMFA that a specific loan or security will be included under the Indenture. 

“Aggregate Annual Debt Service” means, for any given Bond Fund Year, the sum of the principal and 
interest payable on all Bonds Outstanding or to be Outstanding or any portion thereof. 

“Agreement” or “Agreements” means, as the case may be, one or more Loan Agreements, Grant 
Agreements or Securities executed and delivered by Governmental Units in consideration for the financing of all or 
a portion of a Project by the NMFA under the General Indenture. 

“Agreement Pledged Revenues” means the pledged revenues designated by a Governmental Unit for 
payments to be made pursuant to the respective Loan Agreement, Security Documents or Securities. 

“Agreement Reserve Fund” means the Agreement Reserve Fund established by the Indenture and each 
Agreement Reserve Account, if any, created by an Agreement. 

“Agreement Reserve Requirement” for each Agreement establishing an Agreement Reserve Account, 
means the amount, if any, required by such Agreement to be allocated to an Agreement Reserve Account (relating to 
such Agreement) within the Agreement Reserve Fund. 

“Annual Common Debt Service Reserve Deposit Amount” means the lesser of (a) the positive difference, if 
any, between the Required Common Debt Service Reserve Funding Level and the amount then on deposit in the 
Common Debt Service Reserve (and if there is no positive difference, then the amount under this clause (a) shall be 
deemed to be zero), and (b) twenty-five percent (25%) of the remaining NMFA Portion of the Governmental Gross 
Receipts Tax for a given Bond Fund Year that was distributed to the NMFA by the trustee under the Subordinated 
Indenture on June 16, being the day after the end of the applicable bond fund year under the Subordinated Indenture, 
through the process described in the Indenture. 
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“Approval of Bond Counsel” means an opinion of Bond Counsel to the effect that the matter proposed will 
not adversely affect the exclusion from gross income for federal income tax purposes of interest on the Tax Exempt 
Bonds. 

“Assumed Repayments of Loans and Additional Pledged Loans” means, for any given Bond Fund Year, 
the sum (expressed as a dollar amount) of the principal and interest payments scheduled to be due and payable with 
respect to all Loans and Additional Pledged Loans during such Bond Fund Year multiplied by, in each case, the 
applicable percentage pertaining to each such Loan and Additional Pledged Loan: 

Category of Loans and  
Additional Pledged Loans Applicable Percentages 

CATEGORY I 100% 
CATEGORY II 80% 
CATEGORY III 50% 
CATEGORY IV 0% 

 

“Authorized Denominations” means, with respect to the Series 2018D Bonds, $5,000 or any integral 
multiple thereof and means, with respect to the Loans that are subject to the Ninety-Ninth Supplemental Indenture, 
$1 or any integral multiple thereof. 

“Authorized Officer” means: (i) in the case of the NMFA, the Chair, any Vice Chair, Secretary or 
Treasurer, and when used with reference to any act or document also means any other person authorized by 
resolution of the NMFA to perform such act or execute such documents; (ii) in the case of a Governmental Unit, 
means the person or persons authorized by resolution or ordinance of the Governmental Unit to perform any act or 
execute any document; and (iii) in the case of the Trustee or the Paying Agent any person authorized to perform any 
act or sign any document by or pursuant to the bylaws or any resolution of the governing body of the Trustee or the 
Paying Agent, respectively. 

“Beneficial Owner” means, while DTC or its nominee is the registered owner of the Series 2018D Bonds, 
any person entitled to receive payment of principal of, premium, if any, and interest on Series 2018D Bonds and 
otherwise exercise ownership rights with respect to Series 2018D Bonds. 

“Bond Counsel” means nationally recognized bond counsel experienced in matters of municipal law, 
satisfactory to the Trustee and listed in the list of municipal bond attorneys, as published semiannually by The Bond 
Buyer, or any successor publication. 

“Bond Documents” means collectively, the Loan Agreements, the Grant Agreements, the Securities, the 
Security Documents, and the Indenture. 

“Bond Fund” means the fund by that name established by the Indenture to be held by the Trustee and used 
to pay amounts due on the Bonds. 

“Bond Fund Year” shall, with respect to each Series of Bonds, have the meaning set forth in the related 
Supplemental Indenture. 

“Bond Registrar” or “Registrar” means the Trustee or any other registrar appointed under the Indenture. 

“Bonds” means all Bonds issued and secured under the Indenture. 

“Business Day” means any day, other than a day on which banks located in New York, New York or the 
cities in which the Principal Offices of the Trustee or the Paying Agent are located are required or authorized by law 
or executive order to close, or on which the New York Stock Exchange is closed. 
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“Cash Flow Statement” means an NMFA certificate setting forth, for the then current and each future Bond 
Fund Year during which Bonds will be Outstanding, and taking into account (i) any Bonds expected to be issued or 
redeemed or purchased for cancellation in each such Bond Fund Year upon or in connection with the filing of such 
certificate, (ii) the terms of any Loans and Grants or Additional Pledged Loans expected to be made or purchased by 
the NMFA or Loans or Additional Pledged Loans released from the Trust Estate upon or in connection with the 
filing of such certificate, and (iii) the application, withdrawal or transfer of any moneys expected to be applied, 
withdrawn or transferred upon or in connection with the filing of such certificate: 

(A) the amount of NMFA Portion of the Governmental Gross Receipts Tax to be received in 
each such Bond Fund Year and to be available to make debt service payments on the Bonds; 

(B) the Assumed Repayments of Loans and Additional Pledged Loans to be received in each 
such Bond Fund Year and to be available to make debt service payments on the Bonds; and 

(C) the Aggregate Annual Debt Service for each such Bond Fund Year on all Bonds 
reasonably expected to be Outstanding; 

and (b) showing that in each such Bond Fund Year, the aggregate of the amount set forth in clause (A) of the 
definition divided by 1.35, plus the aggregate amount set forth in clause (B) of the definition, exceeds one hundred 
percent (100%) of the aggregate of the amounts set forth in clause (C) of the definition. 

For purposes of the foregoing definition the following assumptions will apply: 

(i) NMFA Portion of the Governmental Gross Receipts Tax in any future Bond 
Fund Year will be assumed to be the greatest amount received by the NMFA in any consecutive 
12-month period in the 24 months next preceding the delivery of the Cash Flow Statement; 

(ii) For any Bonds issued in the year in which a Cash Flow Statement is prepared, 
the Aggregate Annual Debt Service and Assumed Repayments of Loans and Additional Pledged 
Loans associated with such Bonds will be included in calculating the ratio described above; and 

(iii) Loans and Additional Pledged Loans will be assumed to remain in their then-
current category designations throughout the period projected in the Cash Flow Statement. 

“Category I Loans and Additional Pledged Loans” means Loan Agreements, Securities and Additional 
Pledged Loans, the underlying obligations of which, at the time in question, are designated or rated in at least the 
third highest full rating category or higher by the Rating Agencies. 

“Category II Loans and Additional Pledged Loans” means Loan Agreements, Securities and Additional 
Pledged Loans, the underlying obligations of which, at the time in question, are designated or rated in the fourth 
highest full rating category by the Rating Agencies. 

“Category III Loans and Additional Pledged Loans” means Loan Agreements, Securities and Additional 
Pledged Loans the underlying obligations of which, at the time in question, are not designated or rated or are 
designated or rated below the fourth highest full rating category by the Rating Agencies, but excluding Category IV 
Loans and Additional Pledged Loans. 

“Category IV Loans and Additional Pledged Loans” means all Nonperforming Loans and Additional 
Pledged Loans and Loans for which moneys have been drawn on the related Agreement Reserve Account to make 
payments due under the related Agreement and such moneys have not been fully replenished in accordance with the 
related Agreement or loans or Additional Pledged Loans otherwise designated as Category IV by the NMFA or the 
Rating Agencies. 

“Cede” means Cede & Co. and any substitute nominee of DTC who becomes the Registered Owner of any 
Series 2018D Bonds. 
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“Code” means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended and the applicable regulations thereunder. 

“Common Debt Service Reserve Fund” means the fund by that name which is created and established by 
the Indenture. 

“Continuing Disclosure Agreement” means that certain Continuing Disclosure Agreement between the 
NMFA and the Trustee dated the date of issuance and delivery of the Series 2018D Bonds, as originally executed as 
it may be amended from time to time in accordance with the terms thereof. 

“Covenant Default” has the meaning, if any, given in any Loan Agreement, Securities or Additional 
Pledged Loan. 

“DTC” means The Depository Trust Company, New York, New York, a limited purpose trust company 
organized under the laws of the State of New York. 

“Expense Fund” means the fund by that name established by the Indenture to be held by the Trustee. 

“Funds and Accounts” means collectively, the Debt Service Fund and the Accounts created in therein, the 
Agreement Reserve Fund and the Accounts created therein, the Program Fund and the Accounts created therein, the 
Expense Fund, the Rebate Fund and the Accounts created therein, the Revenue Fund, the Bond Fund, and the 
Common Debt Service Reserve Fund. 

“Governmental Obligations” means direct obligations of, or obligations the payment of the principal of and 
interest on which are unconditionally guaranteed by, the United States of America. 

“Governmental Units” means any “qualified entity” under the Act which has executed and delivered to the 
NMFA a Loan Agreement, Grant Agreement or Securities for the purpose of financing all or a portion of a Project. 

“Grant Agreements” means a grant or other similar financing agreement and any amendment thereto, which 
is entered into by and between the NMFA and a Governmental Unit and which provides for the financing of a 
Project with proceeds of Bonds and does not require payments by the Governmental Unit to be made thereunder. 

“Grants” means collectively, the Grants made pursuant to the Grant Agreements. 

“Indenture” means the General Indenture of Trust and Pledge and all Supplemental Indentures thereto as 
the same may be amended and supplemented. 

“Interest Component” means the portion of each Loan Payment representing interest on the related Loan. 

“Interest Payment Date” means, with respect to the Series 2018D Bonds, each June 1 and December 1, 
commencing June 1, 2019. 

“Loan Agreement” means a loan or other similar financing agreement and any amendment thereto, which is 
entered into by and between the NMFA and a Governmental Unit and which provides for the financing of a Project 
with proceeds of Bonds and requires the Governmental Unit to repay the amounts advanced. 

“Loan Payment” means the payments made by each Governmental Unit pursuant to the provisions of a 
Loan Agreement or Securities and which are to be used in accordance with the Indenture. 

“Loan Payment Date” means the date specified in each Loan Agreement or Securities as the due date for 
Loan Payments. 

“Loans” means collectively, the Loans made pursuant to the Loan Agreements and the Securities; 
excluding, however, all Additional Pledged Loans.  Loans and Additional Pledged Loans may be evidenced by the 
same document containing two or more separate obligations. 



 

B-5 
 
 

“Maximum Debt Service Year” means the Bond Fund Year in which the aggregate annual Principal 
Component and Interest Component due in relation to all Loans is at its greatest, less any reserves, sinking fund 
redemption deposits or other funds deposited with the Trustee to the extent such reserves, sinking fund redemption 
deposits or funds may be used as a matter of right for such payments (as opposed to other reserves that are available 
for the payment of debt service solely in the event of non-performance of a party), for the payment of the Principal 
Component and Interest Component due, provided, however, amounts within the Agreement Reserve Fund shall in 
no event be accounted for in any calculation of the Maximum Debt Service Year. 

“NMFA” means the New Mexico Finance Authority. 

“NMFA Portion of the Governmental Gross Receipts Tax” means an amount equal to seventy-five percent 
(75%) of the net receipts attributable to the governmental gross receipts tax levied pursuant to Section 7-9-4.3, 
NMSA 1978, as amended, and distributed to the NMFA pursuant to Section 7-1-6.38, NMSA 1978, as amended. 

“Nonperforming Loans and Additional Pledged Loans” means Loan Agreements and Securities and 
Additional Pledged Loans under which there has occurred and is continuing an event of default (other than a 
Covenant Default) or under which a delinquency exists in payments of principal or interest thereunder. 

“Original Issue Date” means, with respect to the Series 2018D Bonds, the date of delivery thereof. 

“Outstanding” or “Bonds outstanding” mean all Bonds which have been authenticated and delivered by the 
Trustee under the Indenture, except: 

(a) Bonds canceled after purchase in the open market or because of payment at or 
redemption prior to maturity; 

(b) any Bond (or any portion thereof) (i) for the payment or redemption of which there will 
be held in trust under the Indenture and set aside for such payment or redemption, moneys and/or 
Governmental Obligations (not callable at the option of the issuer thereof) maturing or redeemable at the 
option of the holder thereof not later than such maturity or redemption date which, together with income to 
be earned on such Governmental Obligations prior to such maturity or redemption date, will be sufficient to 
pay the principal or redemption price thereof, as the case may be, together with interest thereon to the date 
of maturity or redemption, and (ii) in the case of any such Bond (or any portion thereof) to be redeemed 
prior to maturity, notice of the redemption of which will be given in accordance with the Indenture or 
provided for in a manner satisfactory to the Trustee; and 

(c) Bonds deemed paid pursuant to the provisions of the Indenture; and 

(d) Bonds in lieu of which others have been authenticated pursuant to the Indenture. 

“Participants” means underwriters, securities brokers and dealers, banks and trust companies, clearing 
corporations and other persons from time to time for which DTC or any successor Securities Depository holds Series 
2018D Bonds as Securities Depository. 

“Paying Agent,” when used with respect to the Series 2018D Bonds, means the person or persons 
authorized by the NMFA to pay the principal of, premium, if any, and interest on, the Series 2018D Bond on behalf 
of the NMFA, and initially is the Trustee. 

“Permitted Investments” (i) with respect to the investment of the respective Accounts of the Program Fund, 
the Agreement Reserve Fund and the Debt Service Fund has the meaning set forth in each Agreement, and (ii) with 
respect to the investment of the Revenue Fund, the Bond Fund, the Expense Fund, the Rebate Fund, and the 
Common Debt Service Reserve Fund or any other fund created under the Indenture, the following to the extent 
permitted by New Mexico law: 

(a) Governmental Obligations; 
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(b) Bonds, debentures, notes or other evidence of indebtedness issued or guaranteed by any 
of the following federal agencies and provided such obligations are backed by the full faith and credit of 
the United States of America (stripped securities are only permitted if they have been stripped by the 
agency itself); 

(i) Farmers Home Administration (FmHA) Certificates of Ownership; 

(ii) Federal Housing Administration ( FHA) Debentures; 

(iii) General Services Administration Participation certificates; 

(iv) Government National Mortgage Association (GNMA or “Ginnie Mae”) GNMA 
guaranteed mortgage-backed bonds and GNMA-guaranteed pass-through obligations 
(participation certificates); 

(v) U.S. Maritime Administration Guaranteed Title Xl financing; 

(vi) U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) Project Notes and 
Local Authority Bonds; 

(c) Bonds, debentures, notes or other evidence of indebtedness issued or guaranteed by any 
of the following non-full faith and credit U.S. government agencies (stripped securities are only permitted 
if they have been stripped by the agency itself; 

(i) Federal Home Loan Bank System Senior debt obligations (Consolidated debt 
obligations); 

(ii) Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation (FHLMC or “Freddie Mac”) rated 
AAA by Standard & Poor’s and Aaa by Moody’s.  Participation Certificates (Mortgage-backed 
securities) Senior debt obligations; 

(iii) Federal National Mortgage Association (FNMA or “Fannie Mae”) Mortgage-
backed securities and senior debt obligations (excluded are stripped mortgage securities which are 
valued greater than par on the portion of unpaid principal); 

(iv) Student Loan Market Association (SLMA or “Sallie Mae”) Senior debt 
obligations; 

(v) Resolution Funding Corp. (REFCORP).  Only the interest component of 
REFCORP strips which have been stripped by request of the Federal Reserve Bank of New York 
in book entry form are acceptable; 

(vi) Farm Credit System Consolidated systemwide bonds and notes; 

(d) Money market funds registered under the Federal Investment Company Act of 1940, 
whose shares are registered under the Federal Securities Act of 1933, and having a rating by S&P of 
“AAAmG,” “AAAm” or “Aam” or by Moody’s of “Aaa” including funds from which the Trustee or its 
affiliates revenue fees for investment advisory or other services to such funds. 

(e) Certificates of deposit (“CD”) secured at all times by collateral described in (a) and/or (b) 
above.  CD’s must have a one-year or less maturity.  Such certificates must be issued by commercial banks, 
savings and loan associations or mutual savings banks whose short-term obligations are rated “A-1+” or 
better by S&P, and “Prime-1” or better by Moody’s.  The collateral must be held by a third party and the 
third party must have a perfected first security interest in the collateral; 
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(f) Certificates of deposit, savings accounts, deposit accounts or money market deposits 
which are fully insured by FDIC, including BID and SAIF; 

(g) Commercial paper rated “Prime-1” by Moody’s and “A-1+” or better by S&P; 

(h) Bonds or notes issued by any state or municipality which are rated by Moody’s and S&P 
in one of the two highest long-term rating categories assigned by such agencies; 

(i) Federal funds or bankers acceptances with a maximum term of one year of any bank 
which has an unsecured, uninsured and unguaranteed obligation rating of “Prime-1” or “A-3” or better by 
Moody’s and “A-1+” by S&P; 

(j) Repurchase agreements providing for the transfer of securities from a dealer bank or 
securities firm (seller/borrower) to a municipal entity (buyer/lender), and the transfer of cash from a 
municipal entity to the dealer bank or securities firm with an agreement that the dealer bank or securities 
firm will repay the cash plus a yield to the municipal entity in exchange for the securities at a specified 
date; provided, however, that the repurchase agreement must satisfy certain criteria articulated in writing to 
the NMFA by the Rating Agencies; 

(k) Investment contracts with providers the long term, unsecured debt organization of which 
are rated at least “Aaa” by the Rating Agencies; and 

(l) deposits with the Treasurer of the State for investment in obligations described above. 

“Prepayment” means the amount paid by a Governmental Unit pursuant to the provisions of its Loan 
Agreement or Securities as a prepayment of all or a portion of the principal balance due under its Loan Agreement 
or a prepayment of the principal amount of the Securities. 

“Principal Component” means the portion of each Loan Payment representing principal on the related 
Loan. 

“Program” means the NMFA’s public project revolving fund program. 

“Program Costs” means the fees and expenses payable to the Trustee, any Paying Agent and the NMFA. 

“Program Fund” means the fund by that name which is created and established by the Indenture. 

“Projects” means, collectively, the projects (i) authorized by the Legislature for financing by the NMFA 
from the Public Project Revolving Fund (to the extent required by law) and (ii) described in a Supplemental 
Indenture and a Loan Agreement, Grant Agreement or Securities. 

“Public Project Revolving Fund” means the public project revolving fund established pursuant to the Act. 

“Rating Agencies” means Moody’s Investors Service, Standard & Poor’s Ratings Group and Fitch Ratings 
or their successors and assigns and any other nationally recognized rating service designated by the NMFA and then 
maintaining a rating on the Bonds. 

“Rebate Calculation Date” means, with respect to each Series of Bonds, the interest payment date next 
preceding the fifth anniversary of the issue date of such Series of Bonds, each fifth anniversary of the Initial Rebate 
Calculation Date for such Series of Bonds, and the date of retirement of the last bond for such Series. 

“Rebate Fund” means the Fund so designated, which is created and established by the Indenture. 

“Rebate Requirement” means the amount of arbitrage profits earned from the investment of gross proceeds 
of the Bonds in nonpurpose investments described in Section 148(f)(2) of the Code and defined as “Rebate Amount” 
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in Section 1.148-3 of the Treasury Regulations, which are payable to the United States at the times and in the 
amounts specified in Section 148(f)(3) of the Code and Section 1.148-3 of the Treasury Regulations. 

“Register” means the record of ownership of the Series 2018D Bonds maintained by the Registrar. 

“Registered Owner” or “Bondowner” or “Owner” or “Bondholder” or “holder” means the person or 
persons in whose name or names a Bond will be registered on the books of the Trustee kept for that purpose in 
accordance with provisions of the Indenture. 

“Regular Record Date” means the fifteenth (15th) day immediately preceding each Interest Payment Date 
(or the Business Day immediately preceding such fifteenth (15th) day, if such fifteenth (15th) day is not a Business 
Day). 

“Representation Letter” means the blanket representations letter from the NMFA to DTC. 

“Required Common Debt Service Reserve Funding Level” means an amount (unless amended pursuant to 
the provisions of this definition of Required Common Debt Service Reserve Funding Level), rounded up to the 
nearest thousand dollars, equal to the sum of: 

(i) 0% of maximum annual Principal Component and Interest Component payable in the 
Maximum Debt Service Year of Loans secured by revenue pledges classified by the NMFA as 
governmental gross receipts tax or state gross receipts tax (collectively, “Risk Group One”); 

(ii) 20% of maximum annual Principal Component and Interest Component payable in the 
Maximum Debt Service Year of Loans outstanding secured by revenue pledges classified by the NMFA as 
law enforcement protection fund, general obligation, limited mill levy (limited general obligation), or gross 
receipts tax (other than governmental gross receipts tax, or state gross receipts tax) (collectively, “Risk 
Group Two”); 

(iii) 35% of maximum annual Principal Component and Interest Component payable in the 
Maximum Debt Service Year of Loans outstanding secured by revenue pledges classified by the NMFA as 
fire protection fund, enterprise system revenues, special assessments or a local special tax such as a 
lodgers’ tax, cigarette tax, gasoline tax, special fuel excise tax, pari-mutuel tax, or court facilities fees 
(collectively, “Risk Group Three,” and together with Risk Group One and Risk Group Two, “Risk 
Groups”). 

Pursuant to the following provisions, the NMFA may revise the method of calculating the Required Common Debt 
Service Reserve Funding Level.  The NMFA may, from time to time pursuant to an indenture supplemental to the 
Indenture and without obtaining the consent of the Owners, add or revise revenue pledge categories in addition to 
those included above.  New revenue pledge categories either may be included in one of the three Risk Groups 
identified above or included in a new Risk Group established using a different Risk Group calculation percentage (a 
“Factor”).  The NMFA may, from time to time pursuant to an indenture supplemental to the Indenture and without 
obtaining the consent of the Owners, adjust the funding percentages of the Risk Group Factors, adjust the Risk 
Group in which a revenue pledge is categorized and add or revise revenue pledge categories within Risk Groups as 
to any future Bond issuances.  As to any Bonds outstanding at the time a supplemental indenture as described above 
is entered into, the Risk Groups and Risk Group Factors as they existed prior to the supplemental indenture shall 
continue to be applied to such Bonds.  In the event of any adjustment pursuant to a supplemental indenture whereby 
the Required Common Debt Service Reserve Level is decreased over time below the amount that is currently on 
deposit in the Common Debt Service Reserve Fund, then as provided in the Indenture, the excess amount shall 
remain on deposit in the Common Debt Service Reserve Fund unless used for shortfalls in any Governmental Unit’s 
Account of the Debt Service Fund, or to redeem or defease Bonds.  The NMFA’s and the Trustee’s ability to enter 
into supplemental indentures for the foregoing purposes without the consent of the Owners is an integral term and 
condition of subjecting the Common Debt Service Reserve Fund to the Indenture, and the Trustee is authorized to 
execute any such supplemental indentures, and the provisions of Article XIII of the Indenture shall not apply to such 
supplemental indentures as long as such supplemental indentures comply with the terms of this definition of 
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“Required Common Debt Service Reserve Funding Level.”  In conjunction with executing such supplemental 
indentures, the Trustee shall not be required to make any determination as to whether such a supplemental indenture 
is materially adverse to the interests of the Owners or any other party; whether such a supplemental indenture 
otherwise is permitted pursuant to Article XIII of the Indenture; or any other determination. 

“Revenue Fund” means the Governmental Gross Receipts Tax, Additional Pledged Loan Revenue and Tax 
Subsidy Revenue Fund so designated, which is created and established by the Indenture to be held by the Trustee. 

“Revenues” means (i) all revenues received or earned by the NMFA from or attributable to the Agreements 
(but excluding amounts paid as Program Costs), (ii) all revenues received by the NMFA from the allocation of the 
NMFA Portion of the Governmental Gross Receipts Tax, (iii) all revenues received or earned by the NMFA from or 
attributable to Additional Pledged Loans, if any, (iv) all interest earned by and profits derived from the sale of 
investments in the Funds and Accounts created under the Indenture (except the Rebate Fund), and (v) all Federally 
provided interest subsidies actually delivered to or for the account of the NMFA in relation to Bonds, including, but 
not limited to direct payments of the refundable interest credit (i.e., an interest subsidy) paid pursuant to Section 
6431(b) of the Code in relation to ‘build America bonds’ (as such term is defined in such section of the Code). 

“Securities” means the securities purchased or acquired by the NMFA in consideration for a Loan made 
pursuant to the Indenture. 

“Securities Depository” means the person who operates the computerized book entry system through which 
ownership interest in the Series 2018D Bonds may be recorded.  Such entity shall at all times be a registered 
clearing agency under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, or other applicable statute or regulation, 
and in good standing thereunder. 

“Security Documents” means the intercept agreements or other security documents delivered by 
Governmental Units to provide additional security for a Loan Agreement or Securities. 

“Series” means all of the Bonds authenticated and delivered on original issuance and identified pursuant to 
the Supplemental Indenture authorizing such Bonds as a separate Series of Bonds, and any Bonds thereafter 
authenticated and delivered in lieu thereof or in substitution therefor. 

“Series 2018D Bonds” means the New Mexico Finance Authority Senior Lien Public Project Revolving 
Fund Revenue Bonds, Series 2018D. 

“Special Record Date” means a special record date established pursuant to the Indenture.  “State” means 
the State of New Mexico. 

“Subordinated Indenture” means that certain Subordinated General Indenture of Trust and Pledge between 
the NMFA and BOKF, N.A., Albuquerque, New Mexico, dated as of March 1, 2005, and all supplemental 
indentures supplementing or amending such Subordinated Indenture. 

“Supplemental Indenture” means any supplemental indenture approved by the NMFA in accordance with 
the Indenture amending or supplementing the Indenture or any Supplemental Indenture. 

“Trust Estate” means the property held in trust by the Trustee pursuant to the Granting Clauses of the 
Indenture. 

“Trustee” means BOKF, N.A., Albuquerque, New Mexico, and its successors and any corporation or 
association resulting from or surviving any consolidation or merger to which it or its successors may be a party and 
any successor Trustee at the time serving as successor Trustee under the Indenture. 
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Registration and Exchange of Bonds 

Books for the registration and for the transfer of the Bonds will be kept by the Trustee which is appointed 
the Bond Registrar with respect to the Bonds.  Any Bond may, in accordance with its terms, be transferred only 
upon the registration books kept by the Bond Registrar, by the person in whose name it is registered, in person or by 
his duly authorized attorney, upon surrender of such Bond for cancellation, accompanied by delivery of a written 
instrument of transfer in a form approved by the Registrar, duly executed.  No transfer will be effective until entered 
on the registration books kept by the Registrar.  Upon surrender for transfer of any fully-registered Bond at the 
principal corporate trust office of the Trustee, duly endorsed for transfer or accompanied by an assignment duly 
executed by the Registered Owner or his attorney duly authorized in writing and satisfactory to the Trustee, the 
NMFA will execute and the Trustee will authenticate and deliver in the name of the transferee or transferees a new, 
fully-registered Bond or Bonds for a like aggregate principal amount.  Bonds may be exchanged at the principal 
corporate trust office of the Trustee for a like aggregate principal amount of Bonds of other authorized 
denominations of the same Series and the same maturity.  The execution by the NMFA of any Bond of any 
authorized denomination will constitute full and due authorization of such denomination, and the Trustee will 
thereby be authorized to authenticate and deliver such Bond.  The NMFA and the Trustee will not be required to 
transfer or exchange any Bond of a particular Series (i) during the period from and including any Regular Record 
Date, to and including the next succeeding Interest Payment Date, (ii) during the period from and including the day 
fifteen days prior to any Special Record Date, to and including the date of the proposed payment pertaining thereto, 
(iii) during the period from and including the day fifteen days prior to the mailing of notice calling any Bonds of a 
particular Series for redemption, to and including the date of such mailing, or (iv) at any time following the mailing 
of notice calling such Bond for redemption. 

The NMFA, the Bond Registrar and the Paying Agent may treat and consider the person in whose name 
each Bond is registered on the registration books kept by the Registrar as the holder and absolute owner thereof for 
the purpose of receiving payment of, or on account of, the principal or redemption price thereof and interest due 
thereon and for all other purposes whatsoever, and neither the NMFA, nor the Bond Registrar nor the Paying Agent 
will be affected by any notice to the contrary.  Payment of or on account of either principal of or interest on any 
Bond will be made only to or upon order of the Registered Owner thereof or such person’s legal representative, but 
such registration may be changed as hereinabove provided.  All such payments will be valid and effectual to satisfy 
and discharge the liability upon such Bond to the extent of the sum or sums so paid. 

The Trustee will require the payment by the Registered Owner requesting exchange or transfer, only of any 
tax or other governmental charge required to be paid with respect to such exchange or transfer. 

Nonpresentment of Bonds 

In the event that any Bond are not presented for payment when the principal thereof becomes due at 
maturity, or otherwise, if funds sufficient to pay any such Bond are made available to the Trustee for the benefit of 
the holder or holders thereof, all liability of the NMFA to the holder thereof for the payment of such Bond will 
forthwith cease, determine and be completely discharged, and thereupon it will be the duty of the Trustee to hold 
such funds, without liability to the holders of such Bonds for interest thereon, for the benefit of the holder of such 
Bond who will thereafter be restricted exclusively to such funds, for any claim of whatever nature on his part under 
the Indenture or on, or with respect to, such Bond.  Moneys so deposited with the Trustee which remain unclaimed 
four (4) years after the date payment thereof becomes due will, to the extent authorized by applicable law, at the 
request of the NMFA and if the NMFA is not at the time to the knowledge of the Trustee in default with respect to 
any covenant contained in the Indenture and if to the knowledge of the Trustee there has been no Event of Default, 
be repaid to the NMFA and the Owners of the Bonds for which the deposit was made will thereafter be limited to a 
claim against the NMFA; provided that the Trustee, before making payment to the NMFA, may cause a notice to be 
given to the Owners of the Bonds at their registered addresses, stating that the moneys remaining unclaimed will be 
returned to the NMFA after a specified date.  Upon payment of such amounts to the NMFA by the Trustee, the 
NMFA will deal with such money as required by applicable law. 
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Covenants of the NMFA 

The NMFA will faithfully perform and abide by all of the covenants, undertakings and provisions 
contained in the Indenture or Supplemental Indenture or in any Bond, including the following covenants and 
agreements: 

Covenant Against Creating or Permitting Liens.  Except for the pledge of the Trust Estate to secure 
payment of the Bonds, the Trust Estate is and will be free and clear of any pledge, lien, charge or encumbrance 
thereon or with respect thereto; provided, however, that (i) nothing contained in the Indenture will prevent the 
NMFA from issuing, if and to the extent permitted by law, indebtedness having a lien on the Trust Estate 
subordinated to that of the Bonds and (ii) Revenues constituting NMFA Portion of the Governmental Gross Receipts 
Tax and payments of Additional Pledged Loans not needed for payments under the Indenture in any Bond Year may 
be released to the NMFA free and clear of the lien as provided in the Indenture. 

Existence; Compliance with Laws.  The NMFA will take no action to discontinue maintenance of its 
existence nor to impair its rights, powers, privileges, and franchises, and will comply with all valid and applicable 
laws, acts, rules, regulations, permits, orders, requirements, and directions of any legislative, executive, 
administrative, or judicial body which may relate to the execution and delivery of the Bonds and the performance of 
the NMFA’s obligations under the Indenture. 

No Transfer of Loan Agreements, Grant Agreements, Security Documents and Securities; Exceptions, 
Further Assurance.  The NMFA and the Trustee will not transfer any of the Loan Agreements, Grant Agreements, 
Security Documents and Securities except as specifically authorized in the Indenture in furtherance of the security 
for the Bonds; provided that, (i) once the Governmental Unit has repaid all amounts, if any, owing under its Loan 
Agreement, Grant Agreement, Securities, or Additional Pledge Loan and complied with the other provisions thereof, 
the NMFA and the Trustee may release such Agreement or Additional Pledge Loan and any Security Documents 
from the pledge created under the Indenture; and (ii) the NMFA may direct the release of any Agreement or 
Additional Pledged Loan from the lien and pledge of the Trust Estate under the Indenture upon the delivery to the 
Trustee of a Cash Flow Statement reflecting such release.  Except to the extent otherwise provided in the Indenture, 
the NMFA will not enter into any contract or take any action by which the rights of the Trustee or the Bond Owners 
may be impaired and will, from time to time, execute and deliver such further instruments and will take such further 
action as may be required to carry out the purposes of the Indenture. 

Financing Statements.  The NMFA and the Trustee will cause the Indenture to be filed as a financing 
statement with the Secretary of State of the State, in such manner and at such places as may be required by law fully 
to protect the security interest of the Owners in the Bonds and the right, title, and interest of the Trustee in and to the 
Trust Estate.  From time to time, the Trustee may, but will not be required to, obtain an opinion of counsel setting 
forth what, if any, actions by the NMFA or Trustee should be taken to preserve such security.  The NMFA will 
execute or cause to be executed any and all further instruments as may reasonably be requested by the Trustee for 
such protection of the interests of the Registered Owners, and will furnish satisfactory evidence to the Trustee that 
such actions have been taken and will take such other action as is necessary to preserve the lien of the Indenture 
upon the Trust Estate created by the Indenture until the principal of and interest on the Bonds executed and delivered 
under the Indenture has been paid.  The Trustee will execute or join in the execution of any such further or 
additional instrument and file or join in the filing thereof at such time or times and in such place or places as it may 
be advised by an opinion of Counsel may be necessary to preserve the lien of the Indenture upon the Trust Estate 
created by the Indenture until the Principal of and interest on the Bonds have been paid. 

Rights Under Loan Agreements; Grant Agreements, Security Documents and Securities.  The Loan 
Agreements, Grant Agreements, Security Documents and Securities set forth the covenants and obligations of the 
Governmental Units, including provisions that, subsequent to the issuance of a Series of Bonds and prior to their 
payment in full or provision for payment thereof in accordance with the provisions of the Indenture, the Loan 
Agreements, Grant Agreements, Security Documents and Securities may not be effectively amended, changed, 
modified, altered or terminated without the prior written consent of the Trustee in accordance with the Indenture, 
and reference is made to the same for a detailed statement of said covenants and obligations of the Governmental 
Units thereunder. 
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Bonds to be Tax-Exempt Obligations.  The NMFA covenants and agrees to and for the benefit of the 
Owners of Bonds that the NMFA (i) will not take any action that would cause interest on the Bonds to become 
subject to federal income taxation, (ii) will not omit to take or cause to be taken, in timely manner, any action, which 
omission would cause the interest on the Tax-exempt Bonds to become subject to federal income taxation, and (iii) 
will, to the extent possible, comply with any other requirements of federal tax law applicable to the Bonds in order 
to preserve the exemption from federal income taxation of interest on the Bonds.  The provisions of this paragraph 
do not apply to Bonds designated in the related Supplemental Indenture as bearing or accruing interest intended to 
be subject to Federal income taxation. 

State Pledge of Non-Impairment.  The State has pledged to and agreed with the Bondholders (as an 
obligation issued under the Act) that the State will not limit or alter the rights vested in the NMFA under the Act to 
fulfill the terms of the Indenture with the Bondholders or in any way impair the rights and remedies of those holders 
until the Bonds together with the interest thereon, with interest on any unpaid installments of interest, and all costs 
and expenses in connection with any action or proceedings by or on behalf of those holders, are fully met and 
discharged. 

Deposit and Advance of Funds 

The NMFA and the Trustee will deposit the proceeds of the Bonds to the Accounts created under the 
Indenture and will make the advances of funds thereunder to fund the Program and the NMFA will enter into the 
Loan Agreements and Grant Agreements with the Governmental Units and purchase and receive the Securities and 
Security Documents from the Governmental Units on the terms and conditions and upon submission of the 
documents as provided in the Indenture. 

Loan Agreement and Securities - Loan Payments 

The Loan Payments will be governed by the following provisions: 

(a) Principal, Program Costs and Interest Components.  A portion of each Loan Payment is 
paid as, and represents payment of, interest (the “Interest Component”) on the related Loan and payment of 
a Program Cost component relating to each loan (the “Program Cost Component”) and the balance of each 
Loan Payment is paid as, and represents payment of, principal (the “Principal Component”) on the related 
Loan, all as set forth in the related Loan Agreement or Securities.  Amounts due as the Principal, Program 
Costs, and Interest Components of Loan Payments due under each Loan Agreement or Securities will be 
paid on each Loan Payment Date.  The Interest Component of Loan Payments for each Loan Agreement 
will be the amount of interest based on a 360-day year comprised of twelve 30-day months, unless 
otherwise specified in the related Supplemental Indenture.  The Program Cost Component may be included 
in the interest rate borne by a Loan. 

(b) Loan Agreement and Securities Term.  The “Term” of a Loan Agreement or Securities 
will be defined in the Loan Agreement or Securities.  The Term will not exceed the useful life of the 
Project financed pursuant to the related Loan Agreement or Securities. 

(c) Agreement Payment.  Each Loan Agreement and Security will provide that the related 
Governmental Unit will pay Loan Payments directly to the NMFA on or before Loan Payment Dates for 
remittance to the Trustee (less a portion of the interest rate, if any, retained by the NMFA in lieu of an 
upfront payment as an administrative fee for the payment of Program Costs.  The administrative fee is 
calculated as .015% of the loan amount, capped at $75,000, or the NPV equivalent of .015% if the 
administrative fee is included in the interest rate) prior to each Interest Payment Date.  In the case of 
Securities, the Securities will be registered in the name of the Trustee or properly assigned to the Trustee on 
the books of any registrar for such Securities or, if in bearer form delivered to and held by the Trustee. 

(d) Prepayments.  The Loan Agreements and Securities may contain a provision permitting 
the Governmental Unit to prepay the Principal Component of the Loan Payments, in accordance with the 
provisions of the Loan Agreement and Securities by payment of Prepayments in whole on any date or in 
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part on any Interest Payment Date, at any time when the related Series of Bonds are or are about to become 
subject to optional redemption upon not less than forty-five (45) days’ prior written notice to the Trustee 
and subject to any other conditions set forth in the related Supplemental Indenture, Loan Agreement or 
Securities.  Partial prepayments of the Principal Component of Loan Payments will be made in multiples of 
the minimum Authorized Denomination.  Each Prepayment will include interest to the date upon which the 
Trustee has scheduled a related redemption of Bonds as provided in the related Supplemental Indenture. 

(e) Use of Reserve at Final Payment.  At the time of payment in full of each Loan Agreement 
or Securities, the applicable Agreement Reserve Account in the Agreement Reserve Fund will be applied 
toward the final payment of amounts due under the related Loan Agreement or Securities. 

Establishment of Funds and Accounts 

There is established in the Indenture with the Trustee the following funds and accounts within funds, each 
of which will be held, for the term of the Indenture, in Accounts segregated from all other moneys of the Trustee or 
the NMFA. 

(a) a Program Fund and within such fund a separate Account for each Agreement; 

(b) a Debt Service Fund and within such fund a separate Account for each Agreement; 

(c) a Bond Fund; 

(d) an Agreement Reserve Fund and within such fund, a separate Account for each 
Agreement which contemplates the establishment of an Agreement Reserve Account; 

(e) an Expense Fund; 

(f) a Rebate Fund and within such fund a separate Account for each Agreement; 

(g) a Governmental Gross Receipts Tax, Additional Pledged Loan Revenue and Tax Subsidy 
Revenue Fund (the “Revenue Fund”) established as an account of the Public Project Revolving Fund; and 

(h) a Common Debt Service Reserve Fund. 

In addition to the foregoing, with respect to Additional Pledged Loans the Trustee will, if directed in a 
Supplemental Indenture, establish subaccounts within the Program Fund, the Agreement Reserve Fund or the Debt 
Service Fund for such Additional Pledged Loans. 

Flow of Funds 

All Funds will be accounted for and maintained by the NMFA in the Funds and Accounts established in the 
Indenture.  Each Fund and Account will be kept separate and apart from all other Funds and Accounts of the NMFA, 
except that Accounts may be consolidated within one or more special trust accounts within funds.  Any amount 
deposited pursuant to a consolidation shall remain traceable and sufficiently distinguishable in relation to each 
Agreement and Governmental Unit to permit any applicable arbitrage, yield restriction or similar calculations to be 
made.  The Funds will be expended and used by the Trustee and the NMFA only in the manner of order and priority 
specified below: 

Program Fund.  Upon the issuance of a Series of Bonds the Trustee will deposit an amount specified in the 
related Supplemental Indenture in the Program Fund and will allocate such amount to the respective Accounts 
within the Program Fund as provided in each Agreement.  Disbursements from each Account within the Program 
Fund may be made in stages or in a single disbursement for the purpose of funding a Governmental Unit’s capital 
projects account to the extent permitted by the Indenture, and upon acknowledgment of the Governmental Units of 
its obligation to comply with the provisions of the Indenture.  Disbursements from each Account within the Program 
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Fund with respect to an Agreement with a Governmental Unit will (except for amounts to be used for capitalized 
interest on the Loan and as may be directed in a Supplemental Indenture with respect to Grants) only be made upon 
the delivery to the Trustee of a requisition substantially in the form attached to each Agreement signed by an 
Authorized Officer of the Governmental Unit. 

Application of Loan Payments.  The flow of funds is discussed in the forepart of this Official Statement 
under the heading “SECURITY AND SOURCES OF PAYMENT FOR THE BONDS—Flow of Funds.”  The 
following paragraphs supplement that discussion. 

All income earned from the investment of moneys in the respective Accounts of the Debt Service Account 
and the Agreement Reserve Fund (but only to the extent that the amount on deposit therein exceeds the related 
Agreement Reserve Requirement), will be deposited in the related Account of the Debt Service Account and applied 
as a credit to the Loan Payment next coming due under the Agreement, provided, however, that all earnings received 
on the Governmental Unit’s Accounts will be allocated solely to the benefit of such Governmental Unit.  The 
Trustee will notify the Governmental Unit at least fifteen (15) days prior to the due date of its next payment of Loan 
Payments of the amount of earnings so allocated. 

In the event that the Trustee receives Prepayments under a Loan Agreement or Securities, the Trustee will 
apply such Prepayments to the mandatory redemption of the Bonds or portions thereof in accordance with the 
related Supplemental Indenture, except with respect to Bonds which are subject to the provisions of the Indenture 
discussed in the forepart of this Official Statement under the caption “SECURITY AND SOURCES OF PAYMENT 
FOR THE BONDS—Application of Loan Prepayments.” 

At least once a year the Trustee will determine the amount necessary (i) to be transferred to the Bond Fund 
from each Debt Service Account on Interest Payment Dates for the Bonds from payments relating to a 
Governmental Unit’s Agreement, (ii) to replenish the Governmental Unit’s Account in the Agreement Reserve 
Fund, and (iii) to pay the Governmental Unit’s share of Program Costs for the year, and will return any excess which 
the Trustee does not expect to be required for such payments to the related Governmental Unit or will credit such 
excess to the Loan Payments next coming due under the Governmental Unit’s Agreement; provided, however, that 
(a) any excess attributable to earnings on funds and accounts for the Governmental Unit will be returned to the 
Governmental Unit or will be credited to the Loan Payments next coming due under the Governmental Unit’s 
related Loan Agreement, Grant Agreement or Securities; and (b) any excess attributable to the difference in interest 
rates on the Governmental Unit’s Loan and the relevant Outstanding Series of Bonds will be deposited into the 
Revenue Fund. 

Amounts on deposit in the respective Account of the Agreement Reserve Fund in excess of the related 
Agreement Reserve Account Requirement will be transferred at least annually to the related Accounts of the Debt 
Service Account and credited against payments next coming due under such Loan Agreement or Securities. 

Amounts on deposit in the respective Account of the Agreement Reserve Fund will be applied toward the 
final payment of amounts falling due under the related Loan Agreement or Securities. 

As provided in an Agreement, a Governmental Unit may (i) fund an Account in the Agreement Reserve 
Fund over time from deposits made by or on behalf of the Governmental Unit or (ii) may use any reserve fund 
surety or similar investments in lieu of a cash deposit to the Agreement Reserve Fund. 

Amounts on deposit in each Agreement Reserve Account, if any, secure only the payments to be made 
under the related Agreement and may not be applied toward payments under any other Agreement or toward 
payment of the Bonds, except to the extent that amounts are due and owing under the related Agreement and 
amounts are not otherwise available for such payments in related Account of the Debt Service Account. 

All moneys held by the Trustee in the Bond Fund will be applied in accordance with the Indenture to pay 
the principal or redemption price of Bonds as they mature or become due, upon surrender thereof, and the interest on 
Bonds as it becomes payable.  There will be deposited into the Bond Fund all accrued interest received, if any, at the 
time of the execution, sale and delivery of the Bonds. 
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Amounts remaining on deposit in the Bond Fund at the end of each Bond Fund Year and after payment of 
all amounts due on the Bonds for such Bond Fund Year will be transferred to the Revenue Fund. 

Common Debt Service Reserve Fund 

Pursuant to a Supplemental Indenture, the NMFA has established the Common Debt Service Reserve Fund, 
which is currently funded in the amount of $31,218,500 (as of November 15, 2018).  The NMFA will determine, as 
of the end of each Bond Fund Year, the Required Common Debt Service Reserve Funding Level.  The NMFA will 
deposit the Annual Common Debt Service Reserve Deposit Amount with the Trustee in the Common Debt Service 
Reserve Fund within three (3) business days of receipt by the NMFA of the disbursement of the NMFA Portion of 
the Governmental Gross Receipts Tax distributed to the NMFA by the trustee under the Subordinated Indenture on 
June 16, being the day after the end of the applicable bond fund year under the Subordinated Indenture.  The 
disbursement of the NMFA Portion of the Governmental Gross Receipts Tax becomes available to the NMFA 
pursuant to the following process: (i) at the end of each Bond Fund Year, amounts remaining in the Revenue Fund 
are disbursed to the NMFA pursuant to the Indenture, (ii) pursuant to the Subordinated Indenture, the NMFA is 
obligated to transfer such amounts to the trustee under the Subordinated Indenture on June 1 of each year, (iii) the 
trustee under the Subordinated Indenture applies such amounts as required under the Subordinated Indenture, and 
(iv) the trustee under the Subordinated Indenture transfers the remaining balance of the revenue fund under the 
Subordinated Indenture to the NMFA on June 16 of each year. 

If amounts on deposit in the Common Debt Service Reserve Fund are greater than the Required Common 
Debt Service Reserve Funding Level for a given Bond Fund Year, then no additional deposit will be made to the 
Common Debt Service Reserve Fund for such Bond Fund Year.  Any such excess amount may be used during the 
subsequent Bond Fund Year, at the discretion of the NMFA, for the redemption of Bonds prior to maturity by 
depositing the amount into the Bond Fund or the defeasance of any Bonds.  If the NMFA has deposited the entirety 
of the available Annual Common Debt Service Reserve Deposit Amount as of a Bond Fund Year end, but the 
amount in Common Debt Service Reserve Fund is less than the Required Common Debt Service Reserve Funding 
Level, then the NMFA will not be required to fund from any other source any such difference in excess of the 
Annual Common Debt Service Reserve Deposit Amount; provided, however, if a funding difference remains (based 
on the annual recalculation of the Required Common Debt Service Reserve Funding Level), then the next year’s 
available Annual Common Debt Service Reserve Deposit Amount will be applied to that difference. 

If the amounts on deposit in any Governmental Unit’s Account of the Debt Service Fund are insufficient 
for payments coming due under the related Loan Agreement or Securities on the next Loan Payment Date, after 
applying any applicable Agreement Reserve Account or other source for the payment of Debt Service, on the third 
day preceding a Loan Payment Date (or, if such third day is not a Business Day, on the Business Day next preceding 
such third day), the Trustee will transfer from the Common Debt Service Reserve Fund, an amount sufficient, 
together with amounts in the related Debt Service Account, to pay the Principal Component and the Interest 
Component due under such Loan Agreement or Securities on such Loan Payment Date.  Amounts on deposit in the 
Common Debt Service Reserve Fund may not be applied toward payment of the Bonds, except to the extent that 
amounts are due and owing under the Bonds and amounts are not otherwise available for such payments in the Debt 
Service Fund. 

If all of the following are true:  (i) amounts in the Common Debt Service Reserve Fund have been 
disbursed to pay Principal Component or and Interest Component due under a Loan Agreement or in relation to 
Securities, (ii) at a Bond Fund Year end following such disbursement, a portion of the Annual Common Debt 
Service Reserve Deposit Amount that was funded into the Common Debt Service Reserve Fund was attributable to 
disbursements that should have been restored by a Governmental Unit prior to such Bond Fund Year end (a “CDSR 
Restorative Funding”), (iii) the relevant Governmental Unit later came into compliance as to certain delinquent 
payments that had been covered by Common Debt Service Reserve Fund disbursements (a “CDSR Compliance 
Restoration”), and (iv) the amount in the Common Debt Service Reserve Fund exceeds the Required Common Debt 
Service Reserve Funding Level; then no more frequently than every three months, the Trustee, upon the written 
request of the NMFA (which written request will also certify that the foregoing conditions have been satisfied) will 
disburse to the NMFA the amount by which aggregate CDSR Compliance Restoration amounts exceed the 
aggregate CDSR Restorative Funding amounts. 
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If no Bonds remain outstanding (or all Bonds have been defeased), then upon the request of the NMFA, 
any amount remaining in the Common Debt Service Reserve Fund will be disbursed by the Trustee to the NMFA, 
and the disbursed amounts may be used by the NMFA for any purpose described in the Indenture. 

Investment of Moneys 

Any moneys held as part of a Governmental Unit’s Account in any of the Funds established under the 
Indenture will be invested and reinvested by the Trustee at the direction of the related Governmental Unit in 
Permitted Investments in accordance with the following provisions. 

Any such investments will be held by or under the control of the Trustee.  The Trustee will sell and reduce 
to cash a sufficient amount of such investments whenever the cash balance in the related Debt Service Account is 
insufficient to pay the principal of and premium, if any, and interest on the related Loan Agreement or Securities 
when due.  In the absence of an appropriate direction from a Governmental Unit as to investment of funds, the 
Trustee will invest and reinvest such amounts in a daily money market fund which invests only in United States 
Government Obligations. 

Any moneys held (i) as part of a Governmental Unit’s Account in any of the Funds established under the 
Indenture or (ii) by the NMFA as agent for the Trustee will be invested and reinvested by the NMFA or the Trustee, 
as the case may be, at the direction of the related Governmental Unit in Permitted Investments as directed by the 
Loan Agent or the Securities and in accordance with the following provisions. 

The Trustee or the NMFA will sell and reduce to cash a sufficient amount of such investments whenever 
the cash balance in the related Debt Service Account is insufficient to pay the principal of and premium, if any, and 
interest on the related Loan Agreement or Securities when due. 

Any moneys on deposit in the Revenue Fund, the Expense Fund, the Rebate Fund or the Bond Fund will be 
invested and reinvested by the Trustee at the direction of the NMFA only in Permitted Investments in accordance 
with the Indenture.  Any such investments will be held by or under the control of the Trustee.  The Trustee will sell 
and reduce to cash a sufficient amount of the investments on deposit in the Bond Fund whenever the cash balance in 
the Bond Fund is insufficient to pay the principal of and premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds when due. 

All such investments will at all times be a part of the account or fund from where the money used to 
acquire such investments was deposited and all gains thereon will be credited to, and losses thereon will be charged 
against, such accounts or funds except as expressly provided to the contrary in the Indenture. 

All investments will mature, or be subject to repurchase, withdrawal without penalty, or redemption at the 
option of the owner on or before the dates on which the amounts invested are reasonably expected to be needed for 
the purposes of the Indenture. 

The principal of the investments and the interest, income, and profits received in respect thereof will be 
applied as follows: 

(i) all interest, income, and profits received in respect of the investment of the 
amounts on deposit in a Governmental Unit’s Account in any of the Funds established under the 
Indenture will (after deduction of any losses) be retained in the applicable Governmental Unit’s 
Account from which the investment was derived (except as otherwise required with respect to the 
Agreement Reserve Fund and deposits to be made to the Rebate Fund); and 

(ii) all interest, income, and profits received in respect of the investment of the 
amounts on deposit in the Revenue Fund, the Rebate Fund, the Bond Fund or the Common Debt 
Service Reserve Fund will (after deduction of any losses) be retained in such Fund; and 

(iii) whenever any other transfer or payment is required to be made from any 
particular Fund or Account, such transfer or payment will be made from such combination of 
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maturing principal, redemption, or repurchase prices, liquidation proceeds, and withdrawals of 
principal as the Trustee deems appropriate for such purpose, after taking into account such factors 
as future transfers or payments from the Fund or Account in question, the reinvestment 
opportunities for maturing principal, the current yield on any permitted investments to be 
redeemed, withdrawn, or sold, and any penalties, gains, or losses to be realized upon any such 
redemption, withdrawal, or sale. 

The Trustee will not be accountable for any depreciation in the value of the Permitted Investments or any 
losses incurred upon any authorized disposition thereof. 

Method and Frequency of Valuation.  In computing the amount in any Fund or account, Permitted 
Investments will be valued at least annually at cost, including commissions and accrued interest but excluding 
interest accrued following acquisition. 

Defeasance 

When there has been paid, or provisions for payment have been made to or for the holders and Owners of 
the Bonds, the principal of and premium, if any, and interest due or to become due on the Bonds at the times and in 
the manner stipulated therein, and if there has been paid to the Trustee and any paying agents all sums of money due 
or to become due according to the provisions of the Indenture, then the estate and rights granted by the Indenture 
will cease, determine and be void, whereupon the Trustee will cancel and discharge the lien of the Indenture and on 
demand of the NMFA will execute such documents to evidence such release as will be reasonably required by the 
NMFA and will turn over to the NMFA all balances held by the Trustee under the Indenture (other than amounts 
required for return to the Governmental Units as provided in the Indenture). 

Any Bond will be deemed to be paid within the meaning of and for all purposes of the Indenture when (a) 
payment of the principal of and the applicable premium, if any, on such Bond, whether at maturity or prior 
redemption plus interest thereon to the due date thereof, either (i) has been made or caused to be made in accordance 
with the terms thereof, or (ii) has been provided by irrevocably depositing with the Trustee or other escrow agent, in 
trust, and the Trustee or other escrow agent has irrevocably set aside exclusively for such payment, (1) moneys 
sufficient to make such payment, and/or (2) noncallable Governmental Obligations maturing as to principal and 
interest in such amount and at such times as will insure the availability of sufficient moneys to make such payment, 
and (3) all necessary and proper fees, compensation and expenses of the Trustee and any paying agents pertaining to 
the Bonds with respect to which such deposit is made have been paid or the payment thereof provided for to the 
satisfaction of the Trustee.  At such time as a Bond is deemed to be paid under the Indenture, as aforesaid, it will no 
longer be secured by or entitled to the benefits of the Indenture, except for the purposes of any such payment from 
such moneys or noncallable Governmental Obligations. 

Notwithstanding anything in the Indenture to the contrary, all moneys so deposited with the Trustee (or 
other escrow agent) as provided in the defeasance provisions of the Indenture may at the direction of the NMFA also 
be invested and reinvested in noncallable Governmental Obligations, maturing in the amount and at times as set 
forth in the Indenture, and all income from all noncallable Governmental Obligations in the hands of the Trustee 
which is not required for the payment of the Bonds and interest and premium, if any, thereon with respect to which 
such moneys have been so deposited, will be deposited in the Revenue Fund as and when realized and collected for 
use and application as are other moneys deposited in that fund. 

All moneys or noncallable Governmental Obligations set aside and held in trust pursuant to the defeasance 
provisions of the Indenture for the payment of Bonds (including interest and premium thereon, if any) will be 
applied to and used solely for the payment of the particular Bonds (including interest and premium thereof, if any) 
with respect to which such moneys and noncallable Governmental Obligations have been so set aside in trust. 

Neither the obligations nor the moneys deposited with the Trustee (or other escrow agent) pursuant to the 
defeasance provisions of the Indenture will be withdrawn or used for any purpose other than, and will be segregated 
and held in trust for, the payment of the principal or redemption price of, and interest on, the Bonds or portions 
thereof. 
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Whenever moneys or obligations are deposited with the Trustee (or other escrow agent) for the payment or 
redemption of any Bonds more than sixty (60) days prior to the date that such Bonds are to mature or be redeemed, 
the Trustee will mail a notice stating that such moneys or obligations have been deposited and identifying the Bonds 
for the payment of which such moneys or obligations are being held, to all Owners of Bonds for the payment of 
which such moneys or obligations are being held. 

Notwithstanding anything in the Indenture to the contrary, if moneys or Government Obligations have been 
deposited or set aside with the Trustee pursuant to the defeasance provisions of the Indenture for the payment of 
Bonds and such Bonds have not in fact been actually paid in full, no amendment to the defeasance provisions of the 
Indenture will be made without the consent of the Registered Owner of each Bond affected thereby. 

Notwithstanding anything in the Indenture to the contrary, in the event that the principal and/or interest due 
on any Series of Bonds is paid by a bond insurer with respect to such Series of Bonds pursuant to a financial 
guaranty insurance policy, the Bonds of such Series will remain Outstanding for all purposes, not be defeased or 
otherwise satisfied and not be considered paid by the NMFA, and the assignment and pledge of the Trust Estate and 
all covenants, agreements and other obligations of the NMFA to the Registered Owners and related Security 
Instrument Issues of such Series of Bonds will continue to exist and will run to the benefit of such bond insurer, and 
such bond insurer will be subrogated to the rights of such Registered Owners and related Security Instrument Issues 
of such Series of Bonds. 

Default Provisions and Remedies of the Trustee and Owners 

Events of Default Defined.  Each of the following events is an “Event of Default” under the Indenture: 

(a) if payment of any installment of interest on any of the Bonds is not be made by or on 
behalf of the NMFA when the same becomes due and payable; or 

(b) if payment of the principal of or the redemption premium, if any, on any of the Bonds is 
not be made by or on behalf of the NMFA when the same becomes due and payable, either at maturity or 
by proceedings for redemption in advance of maturity or through failure to fulfill any payment to any fund 
hereunder or otherwise; or 

(c) if the NMFA is for any reason rendered incapable of fulfilling its obligations under the 
Indenture; or 

(d) if an order or decree is entered, with the consent or acquiescence of the NMFA, 
appointing a receiver or custodian for any of the Revenues of the NMFA, or approving a petition filed 
against the NMFA seeking reorganization of the NMFA under the federal bankruptcy laws or any other 
similar law or statute of the United States of America or any state thereof, or if any such order or decree, 
having been entered without the consent or acquiescence of the NMFA will not be vacated or discharged or 
stayed on appeal within 30 days after the entry thereof, or 

(e) if any proceeding is instituted, with the consent or acquiescence of the NMFA, for the 
purpose of effecting a composition between the NMFA and its creditors or for the purpose of adjusting the 
claims of such creditors pursuant to any federal or state statute now or hereafter enacted, if the claims of 
such creditors are or may be under any circumstances payable from Revenues; or 

(f) if (i) the NMFA is adjudged insolvent by a court of competent jurisdiction, or (ii) an 
order, judgment or decree be entered by any court of competent jurisdiction appointing, without the consent 
of the NMFA, a receiver, Trustee or custodian of the NMFA or of the whole or any part of their property 
and any of the aforesaid adjudications, orders, judgments or decrees is not vacated or set aside or stayed 
within 60 days from the date of entry thereof; or 



 

B-19 
 
 

(g) if the NMFA files a petition or answer seeking reorganization, relief or any arrangement 
under the federal bankruptcy laws or any other applicable law or statute of the United States of America or 
any state thereof; or 

(h) if, under the provisions of any other law for the relief or aid of debtors, any court of 
competent jurisdiction assumes custody or control of the NMFA or of the whole or any substantial part of 
the property of the NMFA, and such custody or control is not terminated within 30 days from the date of 
assumption of such custody or control; or 

(i) if the NMFA defaults in the due and punctual performance of any other of the covenants, 
conditions, agreements and provisions contained in the Bonds or the Indenture or any Supplemental 
Indenture on the part of the NMFA to be performed, other than as set forth above in this section and such 
Default continues for 30 days after written notice specifying such Event of Default and requiring the same 
to be remedied has been given to the NMFA by the Trustee, which may give such notice in its discretion 
and will give such notice at the written request of the Registered Owners of not less than twenty-five 
percent (25%) in aggregate principal amount of the Bonds then Outstanding. 

Remedies of the Trustee.  If an Event of Default has occurred and is continuing, the Trustee in its discretion 
may, and upon the written request of the Owners of a majority in aggregate principal amount of all Bonds then 
Outstanding and receipt of indemnity to its satisfaction, will, in its own name: 

(a) by mandamus or other action or proceeding or suit at law or in equity enforce the rights 
of the Owners of the Bonds under the Indenture, including enforcing any rights under the Agreements and 
Security Documents and the provisions of the Indenture for the benefit of the Owners of the Bonds against 
the NMFA and any related Governmental Unit, and compel the NMFA and any related Governmental Unit, 
to perform or carry out its duties under the law and the agreements and covenants required to be performed 
by it contained in the Indenture or in any Agreement (including the appointment of a receiver); or 

(b) by suit in equity enjoin any acts or things which are unlawful or violate the rights of the 
Trustee; or 

(c) intervene in judicial proceedings that affect the Bonds, the Agreements, or the security 
therefor; or 

(d) exercise any or all remedies permitted under the Agreements or Security Documents; or 

(e) cause the NMFA or any related Governmental Unit to account as if it were the Trustee of 
an express trust for all of the Revenues or Agreement Pledged Revenues, pledged under the Indenture or 
pursuant to the Agreements and any Security Documents. 

Non-Waiver.  A waiver of any default or breach of duty or contract by the Trustee or the Owners will not 
affect any subsequent default or breach of duty or contract or impair any rights or remedies on any subsequent 
default or breach of duty or contract.  No delay or omission by the Trustee or the Owners to exercise any right or 
remedy accruing upon any default or breach of duty or contract will impair any such right or be construed to be a 
waiver of any such default or breach of duty or contract or an acquiescence therein, and every right or remedy 
conferred upon the Trustee or the Owners by law or by the Indenture may be enforced and exercised from time to 
time and as often as may be deemed expedient by the Trustee or the Owners. 

If any action, proceeding or suit to enforce any right or to exercise any remedy is abandoned or determined 
adversely to the Trustee or the Owners, the Trustee, the Owners, the NMFA, and the Governmental Units will be 
restored to the former positions, rights and remedies as if such action, proceeding or suit had not been brought or 
taken. 

Remedies Not Exclusive.  No remedy conferred upon or reserved to the Trustee or the Owners under the 
Indenture is intended to be exclusive of any other remedy, and each such remedy is cumulative and is in addition to 
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every other remedy given under the Indenture or now or hereafter existing in law or in equity or by statute or 
otherwise and may be extended without exhausting and without regard to any other remedy conferred by any law. 

No Liability by the Governmental Units to the Owners.  Except for the payment when due of the Loan 
Payments and the performance of the other agreements and covenants required to be performed by it contained in 
the Agreements and Security Documents, the Governmental Units will not have any obligation or liability to the 
Owners with respect to the Indenture or the preparation, execution, delivery or transfer of the Bonds or the 
disbursement of the Loan Payments, by the Trustee, or with respect to the performance by the NMFA of any right or 
obligation required to be performed by it contained in the Indenture or for the performance by any other 
Governmental Unit of such other Governmental Unit’s obligations under an Agreement or Security Documents. 

Limitation of Owners’ Right to Bring Suit.  No Owner of any Bond has any right to institute any 
proceeding, judicial or otherwise, under or with respect to the Indenture, for the appointment of a receiver or Trustee 
or for any other remedy, at law or in equity, unless: 

(a) such Owner has previously given written notice to the Trustee of a continuing Event of 
Default; 

(b) the Owners of not less than a majority of the aggregate principal amount of the Bonds 
Outstanding have made written request to the Trustee to institute proceedings in respect of such Event of 
Default in its own name as Trustee under the Indenture; 

(c) such Owner or Owners have offered to the Trustee reasonable indemnity, satisfactory to 
the Trustee, against the costs, expenses and liabilities to be incurred in compliance with such request; and 

(d) the Trustee for 60 days after its receipt of such notice, request and offer of indemnity has 
failed to institute any such proceeding. 

No one or more Owners has any right in any manner whatever by virtue of, or by availing of, any provision 
of the Indenture to affect, disturb or prejudice the lien of the Indenture or the rights of any other Owners or to obtain 
or to seek to obtain priority or preference over any other Owners or to enforce any right under the Indenture, except 
in the manner provided in the Indenture and for the equal and ratable benefit of all Bond Owners.  Notwithstanding 
the foregoing, the Owner of any Bond has the right which is absolute and unconditional to receive payment of 
interest on such Bond when due in accordance with the terms of the Bonds and the Indenture and the principal of 
such Bond at the stated maturity of the Bonds and to institute suit for the enforcement of any such payment in 
accordance with the provisions of the Indenture and such rights will not be impaired without the consent of such 
Owner. 

The Owners of a majority in aggregate principal amount of the Bonds Outstanding under the Indenture 
have the right, after furnishing indemnity satisfactory to the Trustee, to direct the method and place of conducting all 
remedial proceedings by the Trustee, provided that such direction is not in conflict with any rule of law or with the 
Indenture or unduly prejudice the rights of minority Owners of Bonds. 

Application of Funds Upon Default.  All moneys received by the Trustee or by any receiver pursuant to any 
right given or action taken under the default provisions of the Indenture or under the provisions of the related 
Agreements, will, after payment of the reasonable costs and fees of, and the reasonable expenses, liabilities and 
advances incurred or made by the Trustee, be deposited in the Bond Fund and all moneys so deposited during the 
continuance of an Event of Default (other than moneys deposited to the Bond Fund for the payment of Bonds which 
have previously matured or otherwise become payable prior to such Event of Default), together with all moneys in 
the Funds maintained by the Trustee or the NMFA under the Indenture, will be applied as follows: 

(a) Unless the principal of all Bonds shall have become due and payable, all such moneys 
will be applied, as follows: 
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First:  To the payment to the persons or entity entitled thereto of all installments of interest then 
due on the Bonds, in the order of maturity of the installments of such interest, and, if the amount 
available will not be sufficient to pay in full any particular installment of interest, then to the 
payment ratably according to the amounts due on such installment, to the persons or entity entitled 
thereto without any discrimination or privilege; 

Second:  To the payment to the persons or entity entitled thereto of the unpaid principal of and any 
of the Bonds which have become due (other than Bonds called for prepayment for the payment of 
which moneys are held pursuant to the provisions of the Indenture), with interest on such Bonds at 
their rate from the respective dates upon which they became due, in the order of their due dates, 
and, if the amount available is not sufficient to pay in full Bonds due on any particular date, 
together with such interest, then to the payment ratably, according to the amount of principal and 
interest due on such date, to the persons or entities entitled thereto without any discrimination or 
privilege; and 

Third:  To be held for the payment to the persons entitled thereto as the same become due of the 
principal of, the premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds which may thereafter become due at 
maturity and, if the amount available is not sufficient to pay in full Bonds due on any particular 
date, together with interest then due and owing thereon, payment will be made ratably according 
to the amount of principal due on such date to the persons entitled thereto without any 
discrimination or privilege. 

(b) If the principal of all the Bonds becomes due and payable all such moneys will be applied 
to the payment of the principal and interest then due and unpaid upon the Bonds, with the interest on 
overdue principal, as aforesaid, without preference or priority of principal over interest or of interest over 
principal or of any installment of interest over any other installment of interest, or of any Bonds over any 
other certificates, ratably, according to the amounts due respectively for principal and interest, to the 
persons entitled thereto without any discrimination or privilege. 

Whenever moneys are to be applied pursuant to the provisions of this section, such moneys will be applied 
at such times, and from time to time, as the Trustee may determine, having due regard for the amount of such 
moneys available for such application in the future.  Whenever the Trustee applies such moneys it will fix the date 
(which will be an Interest Payment Date unless it deems another date more suitable) upon which date such 
application is to commence and upon such date interest on the amounts of principal to be paid on such date will 
cease to accrue.  The Trustee will give such notice as it may deem appropriate of the deposit with it of any moneys 
and of the fixing of any such date and of the Special Record Date in accordance with the Indenture.  The Trustee 
will not be required to make payment to the holder of any unpaid Bond until such Bond is presented to the Trustee 
for appropriate endorsement or for cancellation if fully paid. 

Waivers of Events of Default.  The Trustee may in its discretion waive any Event of Default and its 
consequences and will do so upon the written request of the Registered Owners of (a) a majority in aggregate 
principal amount of all the Bonds then outstanding in respect of which Default in the payment of principal and 
interest exist, or (b) a majority in aggregate principal amount of the Bonds then Outstanding in the case of any other 
Event of Default; provided, however, that there will not be waived (i) any Event of Default in the payment of the 
principal of any Bonds at the date of maturity specified therein, or (ii) any default in the payment when due of the 
interest on any such Bonds, unless prior to such waiver or rescission, all arrears of interest, with interest (to the 
extent permitted by law) at the rate borne by the Bonds in respect of which such Event of Default has occurred on 
overdue installments of interest and all arrears of payments of principal and premium, if any, when due and all 
expenses of the Trustee, in connection with such Event of Default has been paid or provided for, and in case of any 
such waiver or rescission, or in case any proceeding taken by the Trustee on account of any such Event of Default 
has been discontinued or abandoned or determined adversely, then and in every such case the NMFA, the Trustee 
and the Registered Owners will be restored to their former positions and rights under the Indenture, respectively, but 
no such waiver or rescission will extend to any subsequent or other Event of Default, or impair any right consequent 
thereon. 
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Supplemental Indentures 

Supplemental Indentures Not Requiring Consent of Owners.  The NMFA and the Trustee may, without 
consent of, or notice to, any of the Owners enter into an indenture or indentures supplemental to the Indenture for 
any one or more of the following purposes: 

(a) To provide for the issuance of Additional Bonds in accordance with the provisions of the 
Indenture; 

(b) To cure any ambiguity or formal defect or omission in the Indenture; 

(c) To grant to or confer upon the Trustee for the benefit of the Owners any additional rights, 
remedies, powers or authority that may lawfully be granted to or conferred upon the Registered Owners or 
the Trustee; 

(d) To subject to the Indenture additional revenues, properties or collateral; 

(e) To evidence the appointment of a separate Trustee or paying agent or the succession of a 
new Trustee or paying agent under the Indenture; 

(f) To make any other change which in the judgment of the Trustee is not materially adverse 
to the interests of the Trustee or any of the Owners; 

(g) To make any amendments with the prior written confirmation from of the Rating Agency 
that such amendments will not result in the rating on the Bonds following such amendment being lower 
than the rating on the Bonds immediately prior to such amendment; and 

(h) To add additional covenants of the NMFA or any Governmental Unit or to surrender any 
right or power conferred upon the NMFA in the Indenture or any Governmental Unit or to grant additional 
powers or rights to the Trustee. 

Supplemental Indentures Requiring Consent of Owners.  Exclusive of supplemental indentures covered by 
the foregoing section and subject to the following terms and provisions and not otherwise, the Owners of not less 
than a majority in aggregate principal amount of the Bonds then outstanding will have the right, from time to time, 
anything contained in the Indenture to the contrary notwithstanding, to consent to and approve the execution by the 
NMFA and the Trustee of such other indenture or indentures supplemental to the Indenture as may be deemed 
necessary and desirable by the NMFA for the purpose of modifying, altering, amending, adding to or rescinding, in 
any particular, any of the terms or provisions contained in the Indenture or in any supplemental indenture; provided, 
however, that nothing in this section or in the foregoing section will permit, or be construed as permitting, (i) an 
extension of the maturity of the principal of, or the interest on, any Bond, or (ii) a reduction in the principal amount 
of, or redemption premium on, any Bond or the rate of interest thereon, or (iii) a privilege or priority of any Bond or 
Bonds over any other Bond or Bonds, or (iv) a reduction in the aggregate principal amount of the Bonds required for 
consent to such supplemental indentures, or (v) permit the creation of any lien ranking prior to the lien of the 
Indenture on the Trust Estate or any part thereof, or (vi) deprive the Owner of any Bond then outstanding of the lien 
created by the Indenture on the Trust Estate without the prior consent of one hundred percent (100%) of the holders 
of the Bonds affected by such supplemental indenture.  The Trustee may, but is not obligated to, enter into any such 
supplemental indenture which adversely affects the Trustee’s rights, duties or immunities under the Indenture or the 
Agreements. 

If at any time the NMFA requests the Trustee to enter into any such supplemental indenture for any of the 
purposes of this section, the Trustee will, upon being satisfactorily indemnified with respect to expenses, cause 
notice of the proposed execution of such supplemental indenture to be given by registered or certified mail to the 
owner of each Bond shown by the list of Owners kept at the office of the Trustee.  Such notices will briefly set forth 
the nature of the proposed supplemental indenture and will state that copies thereof are on file at the principal office 
of the Trustee for inspection by all Owners.  If, within one hundred twenty (120) days or such longer period as the 
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holders of not less than a majority in aggregate principal amount of the Bonds outstanding at the time of the 
execution of any such supplemental indenture have consented to and approved the execution thereof as provided in 
the Indenture, no Owner of any Bond will have any right to object to any of the terms and provisions contained 
therein, or the operation thereof, or in any manner to question the propriety of the execution thereof, or to enjoin or 
restrain the Trustee or the Governmental Units from executing the same or from taking any action pursuant to the 
provisions thereof.  Upon the execution of any such supplemental indenture as permitted and provided, the Indenture 
will be and be deemed to be modified and amended in accordance therewith. 

Amendment of Agreements and Security Documents. 

(a) The NMFA will have the right to amend an Agreement and any existing Security 
Documents with the Consent of the Trustee and the related Governmental Unit without Bond Owners’ 
consent, for one or more of the following purposes: 

(i) to add additional covenants of the NMFA or the related Governmental Unit, as 
applicable, or to surrender any right or power conferred upon the NMFA or the related 
Governmental Unit; 

(ii) to make any amendments with the prior written confirmation from the Rating 
Agencies that such amendment will not result in the rating on the Bonds following such 
amendment being lower than the rating on the Bonds immediately prior to such amendment; 

(iii) for any purpose not inconsistent with the terms of the Indenture or to cure any 
ambiguity or to correct or supplement any provision contained therein or in any amendment 
thereto which may be defective or inconsistent with any other provision contained therein or in the 
Indenture or in any amendment thereto or in any Supplemental Indenture, or to make such other 
provisions in regard to matters or questions arising under any Agreement, or Security Documents 
which in the judgment of the Trustee do not adversely affect the interests of the Owners of Bonds; 
or 

(iv) to make any other change or amendment upon the delivery to the Trustee of a 
Cash Flow Statement and an Approval of Bond Counsel. 

(b) If the NMFA or a Governmental Unit propose to amend an Agreement or related Security 
Documents in a manner not contemplated by (a) above the Trustee will notify the Owners of the Bonds of 
the proposed amendment and may consent thereto with the consent of the Owners of at least a majority in 
aggregate principal amount of the Bonds then Outstanding. 

Fees, Charges and Expenses of the Trustee 

Upon an Event of Default, but only upon an Event of Default, the Trustee will have a right of payment 
prior to payment on account of interest or principal of, or premium, if any, on any Bond for the Trustee’s advances, 
fees, costs and expenses incurred. 
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APPENDIX C 
 

CERTAIN ECONOMIC AND DEMOGRAPHIC INFORMATION 
RELATING TO THE STATE 

The following economic and demographic descriptions are furnished for information only.  The Series 
2018D Bonds do not constitute a general obligation of the State and are special limited obligations of Finance 
Authority payable solely from the Trust Estate.  THE FINANCE AUTHORITY HAS NO TAXING POWERS.  The 
principal of and interest and premium, if any, on the Series 2018D Bonds do not constitute or give rise to a personal 
liability on the part of the directors and officers of the Finance Authority.  No breach of any pledge, obligation or 
agreement of the Finance Authority will impose a pecuniary liability or a charge upon the general credit of the State, 
the Finance Authority or any political subdivision of the State, or upon the taxing power of the State or any political 
subdivision of the State. 

The information presented in this Appendix C relates to certain economic and demographic information 
relating to the State.  Such information is for informational purposes and is presented to provide readers a sense of 
the economic and demographic composition of the State.  Such information is available from the sources listed in 
the tables and is believed to be reliable.  However, the Finance Authority has not verified and does not guarantee the 
accuracy of any such information. 

Generally 

The State, admitted as the forty-seventh state on January 6, 1912, is the fifth largest state, containing 
approximately 121,593 square miles.  The estimated 2017 population of the State was 2,088,070.  The State has a 
semiarid subtropical climate with light precipitation.  Its climate is characterized by sunshine and bright skies in 
both winter and summer.  Every part of the State receives no less than 70 percent sunshine year-round.  Humidity 
ranges from 60 percent (mornings) to 30 percent (afternoons).  Thunderstorms in July and August bring most of the 
moisture.  December to March snowfalls vary from 2 inches (lower Rio Grande Valley) to 300 inches (north central 
mountains). 

Governmental Organization 

The Executive Branch of State government consists of a Governor, Lieutenant Governor, Secretary of 
State, State Auditor, State Treasurer, Attorney General, and Commissioner of Public Lands.  These officials are 
elected to four-year terms beginning January 1 after their election.  An elected Executive Branch officer may 
succeed himself or herself in office once.  The primary functions of the Executive Branch are currently carried out 
by the offices of each elected Executive Branch officeholder, in addition to approximately 22 cabinet departments, 
each headed by a cabinet secretary appointed by the Governor with the advice and consent of the Senate, and 
approximately 9 cabinet-level agencies.  Elections for all executive branch statewide offices were held on November 
4, 2014, and will be held on November 6, 2018. 

The State Board of Finance (“State Board”) has seven voting members consisting of the Governor, the 
Lieutenant Governor, the State Treasurer, and four members appointed by the Governor with the advice and consent 
of the Senate.  No more than two appointed members may be from the same political party.  The Department of 
Finance and Administration (the “DFA”) Secretary serves as the Executive Officer of the State Board and is a non-
voting member.  The State Board, in addition to other powers and duties provided by law, has general supervisory 
authority over the fiscal affairs of the State and over the safekeeping and depositing of all money and securities 
belonging to, or in the custody of, the State.  The Governor serves as the President of the State Board. 

The DFA is the principal financial organization of State government and performs through its divisions the 
duties and functions relating to State and local government financing and general administration.  The executive and 
administrative head of the DFA is the Secretary, who is appointed by the Governor with the advice and consent of 
the Senate.  The State Board’s staff are a division of the DFA.  The Director of the State Board is appointed by the 
Secretary with the approval of the members of the State Board. 
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The Legislature consists of 112 members and is divided into a Senate and a House of Representatives.  
Senators are elected for four-year terms and members of the House are elected for two-year terms.  The Legislature 
convenes in regular session annually on the third Tuesday in January.  Regular sessions are constitutionally limited 
in length to 60 calendar days in odd-numbered years and 30 calendar days in even-numbered years.  Special sessions 
of the Legislature may be convened by the Governor.  Extraordinary sessions may be convened by the Legislature 
under certain limited circumstances.  Legislators do not receive any salary, but do receive per diem and mileage 
allowances while in session or performing official State business. 

The judicial branch is composed of a statewide system including Magistrate and District Courts, the Court 
of Appeals and the Supreme Court.  The District Courts are the trial courts of record with general jurisdiction. 

Economic and Demographic Characteristics 

New Mexico is the 36th largest state by population and the fifth largest in land area.  The estimated 
population of the State as of July 1, 2017 was 2,088,070. 

There are four Metropolitan Statistical Areas (“MSAs”) in the State.  The Albuquerque MSA is comprised 
of Bernalillo, Sandoval, Torrance and Valencia Counties; the Las Cruces MSA is comprised of Doña Ana County; 
the Santa Fe MSA is comprised of Santa Fe County; and the Farmington MSA is comprised of San Juan County.  
The fastest growing counties in the State are Sandoval, Doña Ana, Bernalillo, Santa Fe, Valencia, and San Juan.  
The following table sets forth information on population growth in New Mexico and nationally. 

POPULATION 
NEW MEXICO AND THE UNITED STATES 

2008-2017 

 Population Annual Percentage Change 
Year New Mexico United States New Mexico(1) United States 

2008 1,984,179 304,177,401 0.9% 0.9% 
2009 2,007,315 306,656,290 1.2% 0.8% 
2010 (Census) 2,059,179 308,745,538 2.6% 0.7% 
2011(2) 2,077,744 311,644,280 0.9% 0.9% 
2012(2) 2,083,590 313,993,272 0.3% 0.8% 
2013(2) 2,085,161 316,234,505 0.1% 0.7% 
2014(2) 2,083,207 318,622,525 (0.1%) 0.8% 
2015(2) 2,082,264 321,039,839 0.0% 0.8% 
2016(2) 2,085,432 323,405,935 0.2% 0.7% 
2017(2) 2,088,070 325,719,178 0.1% 0.7% 

 

    
(1) Dash (–) represents zero or rounds to zero. 
(2) Estimate as of July 1.   
(Source:  U.S. Census Bureau, Population Division.  Last revised December 2017.) 

Major industries in the State include oil and natural gas production, manufacturing, service, tourism, 
services, arts and crafts, agribusiness, government and mining.  Major federally funded scientific research facilities 
at Los Alamos, Albuquerque and White Sands are also a notable part of the State’s economy.  The following table 
sets forth information on employment by industry over the period of 2007 through 2016. 

 
(The remainder of this page intentionally left blank.) 
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TOTAL FULL-TIME AND PART-TIME EMPLOYMENT BY INDUSTRY 

2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 
Growth 

2015-2016 
Growth 

2007-2016 
Total employment  1,105,413   1,107,869   1,075,660   1,060,716   1,065,291   1,067,757   1,075,867   1,083,933   1,092,505  1,099,260 0.6% (0.6%) 
Wage and salary employment  878,592   881,856   849,122   837,320   837,281   839,789   846,896   852,979   860,662  862,115 0.2 (1.9) 
Proprietors employment  226,821   226,013   226,538   223,396   228,010   227,968   228,971   230,954   231,843  237,145 2.3 4.6 
Farm proprietors employment  18,193   18,041   18,270   19,083   20,715   21,436   21,547   21,473   21,405  21,307 (0.5) 17.1 
Nonfarm proprietors employment  208,628   207,972   208,268   204,313   207,295   206,532   207,424   209,481   210,438  215,838 2.6 3.5 
Farm employment  25,804   24,702   25,228   25,630   27,323   28,370   29,218   28,262   28,866  29,657 2.7 14.9 
Nonfarm employment  1,079,609   1,083,167   1,050,432   1,035,086   1,037,968   1,039,387   1,046,649   1,055,671   1,063,639  1,069,603 0.6 (0.9) 
Private employment  869,670   869,872   834,214   817,651   824,157   827,488   835,812   846,309   854,978  860,682 0.7 (1.0) 
Forestry, fishing, related activities and other(1)  5,161   5,293   5,287   5,200   5,237   5,138   5,247   5,689   5,557  5,557 0.0 7.7 
Mining(2)  24,913   28,331   24,467   27,049   28,362   34,232   36,831   38,220   36,654  31,103 (15.1) 24.8 
Utilities  4,538   4,666   4,873   4,637   4,554   4,583   4,667   4,591   4,686  4,807 2.6 5.9 
Construction(3)  80,578   77,980   67,247   61,314   59,382   58,032   59,248   59,728   59,821  59,381 (0.7 (26.3) 
Manufacturing  42,818   40,671   36,587   34,587   35,750   35,771   35,469   34,044   34,162  33,334 (2.4) (22.1) 
Durable goods manufacturing(4)  29,770   28,091   24,485   23,086   23,698   23,217   22,553   21,255   21,193  20,080 (5.3) (32.5) 
Nondurable goods manufacturing(5)  13,048   12,580   12,102   11,501   12,052   12,554   12,916   12,789   12,969  13,254 2.2 1.6 
Wholesale trade  29,015   28,755   26,698   26,921   26,513   26,486   26,694   28,867   28,508  29,365 3.0 1.2 
Retail trade(6)  119,034   118,204   114,095   110,475   111,583   111,908   112,808   114,006   114,963  115,080 0.1 (3.3) 
Transportation and warehousing(7)  27,435   26,703   24,361   23,430   24,333   25,361   25,505   25,927   27,278  26,837 (1.6) (2.2) 
Information(8)  18,879   18,971   17,497   17,130   16,508   16,473   16,059   15,722   15,588  15,901 2.0 (15.8) 
Finance and insurance(9)  33,829   34,633   36,035   34,660   35,632   35,138   34,903   34,599   34,466  34,611 0.4 2.3 
Real estate and rental and leasing(10)  41,944   41,498   39,685   39,500   39,760   38,275   38,513   39,200   39,664  40,855 3.0 (2.6) 
Professional and technical services  82,057   82,138   80,457   78,439   77,591   76,152   75,940   76,150   77,562  79,035 1.9 (3.7) 
Management of companies and  enterprises  6,072   5,908   5,566   5,380   5,491   5,449   5,503   5,631   5,870  6,111 4.1 0.6 
Administrative and waste services(11)  60,437   60,327   55,868   54,315   54,746   53,440   54,622   54,392   53,022  53,157 0.3 (12.0) 
Educational services  15,801   15,988   16,363   16,814   16,280   16,152   16,404   16,787   17,035  17,542 3.0 11.0 
Health care and social assistance(12)  111,857   114,850   118,169   119,533   121,675   123,264   123,782   124,848   129,765  134,766 3.9 20.5 
Arts, entertainment and recreation(13)  23,000   23,352   23,308   23,110   23,142   23,722   23,743   24,236   24,248  24,445 0.8 6.3 
Accommodation and food services(14)  85,156   84,057   81,759   81,222   82,391   83,232   85,532   88,348   90,244  92,634 2.6 8.8 
Other services, except public  administration(15)  57,146   57,547   55,892   53,935   55,227   54,680   54,342   55,324   55,885  56,161 0.5 (1.7) 
Government and government  enterprises(16)  209,939   213,295   216,218   217,435   213,811   211,899   210,837   209,362   208,661  208,921 0.1 (0.5) 

 

     
(1) The “Forestry, fishing, related activities and other” category includes: forestry and logging; fishing, hunting and trapping; agriculture and forestry support activities. 
(2) The “Mining” category includes: oil and gas extraction; mining (except oil and gas); and support activities for mining. 
(3) The “Construction” category includes: construction of buildings; heavy and civil engineering construction; and specialty trade contractors. 
(4) The “Durable goods manufacturing” category includes: wood product manufacturing; nonmetallic mineral product manufacturing; primary metal manufacturing; fabricated metal product manufacturing; machinery manufacturing; computer 

and electronic product manufacturing; electrical equipment and appliance manufacturing; motor vehicles, bodies and trailers, and parts manufacturing; other transportation equipment manufacturing; furniture and related product 
manufacturing; and miscellaneous manufacturing. 

(5) The “Nondurable goods manufacturing” category includes: food manufacturing; beverage and tobacco product manufacturing; textile mills; textile product mills; apparel manufacturing; leather and allied product manufacturing; paper 
manufacturing; printing and related support activities; petroleum and coal products manufacturing; chemical manufacturing; and plastics and rubber products manufacturing. 

(6) The “Retail trade” category includes: motor vehicle and parts dealers; furniture and home furnishings stores; electronics and appliance stores; building material and garden supply stores; food and beverage stores; health and personal care 
stores; gasoline stations; clothing and clothing accessories stores; sporting goods, hobby, book and music stores; general merchandise stores; miscellaneous store retailers; and nonstore retailers. 

(7) The “Transportation and warehousing” category includes: air transportation; rail transportation; water transportation; truck transportation; transit and ground passenger transportation; pipeline transportation; scenic and sightseeing 
transportation; support activities for transportation; couriers and messengers; and warehousing and storage. 

(8) The “Information” category includes: publishing industries, except Internet; motion picture and sound recording industries; broadcasting, except Internet; Internet publishing and broadcasting; telecommunications; ISPs, search portals and 
data processing; and other information services. 

(9) The “Finance and insurance” category includes: monetary authorities-central bank; credit intermediation and related activities; securities, commodity contracts, investments; insurance carriers and related activities; and funds, trusts and other 
financial vehicles. 

(10) The “Real estate and rental and leasing” category includes: real estate; rental and leasing services; and lessors of nonfinancial intangible assets. 
(11) The “Administrative and waste services” category includes: administrative and support services; and waste management and remediation services. 
(12) The “Health care and social assistance” category includes: ambulatory health care services; hospitals; nursing and residential care facilities; and social assistance. 
(13) The “Arts, entertainment and recreation” category includes: performing arts and spectator sports; museums, historical sites, zoos and parks; and amusement, gambling and recreation. 
(14) The “Accommodation and food services” category includes: accommodation; and food services and drinking places. 
(15) The “Other services, except public administration” category includes: repair and maintenance; personal and laundry services; membership associations and organizations; and employment in private households. 
(16) The “Government and government enterprises” category includes: federal, civilian; military; state and local; and state government and local government. 
(Source: Regional Economic Information System, Bureau of Economic Analysis, Last updated September 26, 2017, including new estimates for 2016 and revised estimates for 2014-2015.) 
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The following tables set forth selected additional economic and demographic data with respect to the State. 

EMPLOYMENT AND LABOR FORCE 
NEW MEXICO AND THE UNITED STATES 

2008-2017 

 
Civilian Labor Force 

(Thousands) 
Number of Employed 

(Thousands) Unemployment Rate 

Year 
New 

Mexico(1) 
United 
States(1) 

New 
Mexico(1) 

United 
States(1) 

New 
Mexico 

United 
States 

N.M. as 
% of 

U.S. Rate 
2008 940 154,287 902 145,362 4.5%    5.8% 78% 
2009 936 154,142 869 139,877 7.5    9.3 81 
2010 930 153,889 860 139,064 8.1    9.6 84 
2011 928 153,617 860 139,869 7.5    8.9 84 
2012 924 154,975 862 142,469 7.1    8.1 88 
2013 927 155,389 860 143,929 6.9    7.4 93 
2014 928 155,922 865 146,305 6.7    6.2 108 
2015 929 157,130 867 148,834 6.5    5.3 123 
2016 930 159,187 867 151,436 6.7    4.9 137 
2017 945 160,320 872 153,337 6.2    4.4 141 

 

    
(1) Figures rounded to nearest thousand. 
(2) Preliminary estimate. 
(Source:  U.S. Bureau of Labor and Statistics (Last updated: January 19, 2018 for national data and March 12, 2018 
for state data).) 

PERSONAL INCOME 
NEW MEXICO AND THE UNITED STATES 

2008-2017 

 Personal Income (000) 
Annual 

Percentage Change 
Year New Mexico United States New Mexico United States 
2008 67,250,834 12,492,705,000 6.6% 4.1% 
2009 66,243,018 12,079,444,000 (1.5) (3.3) 
2010 68,361,950 12,459,613,000 3.2 3.1 
2011 72,175,501 13,233,436,000 5.6 6.2 
2012 73,822,778 13,904,485,000 2.3 5.1 
2013 72,465,608 14,068,960,000 (1.8) 1.2 
2014 76,593,172 14,811,388,000 5.7 5.3 
2015 78,996,882 15,547,661,000 3.1 5.0 
2016 80,064,958 15,912,777,000 1.4 2.3 
2017 81,483,543 16,413,550,863 1.8 3.1 

 

    
(Source:  U.S. Department of Commerce, Bureau of Economic Analysis, Regional Data.  Last updated: March 22, 
2018, including new estimates for 2017 and revised estimates for 2010-2016.) 

(The remainder of this page intentionally left blank.) 
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PER CAPITA PERSONAL INCOME 
NEW MEXICO AND THE UNITED STATES 

2008-2017 

 Per Capita Income  
Annual 

Percentage Change 

Year New Mexico United States 
N.M. as a % 

New Mexico United States of U.S. 
2008 33,447 41,082 81% 5.5% 3.2% 
2009 32,523 39,376 83 (2.8) (4.2) 
2010 33,111 40,278 82 1.8 2.3 
2011 34,737 42,463 82 4.9 5.4 
2012 35,431 44,283 80 2.0 4.3 
2013 34,753 44,489 78 (1.9) 0.5 
2014 36,767 46,486 79 5.8 4.5 
2015 37,938 48,429 78 3.2 4.2 
2016 38,393 49,204 78 1.2 1.6 
2017 39,023 50,392 78 1.6 2.4 

 

    
(Sources:  U.S. Department of Commerce, Bureau of Economic Analysis, Regional Data.  Last revised: March 22, 
2018, including new estimates for 2017 and revised estimates for 2010-2016.) 

(The remainder of this page intentionally left blank.) 
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WAGES AND SALARIES BY INDUSTRY SECTOR 
2008-2017 

NAICS Earnings by 
Place of Work (1) 

Applicable to 2007-2016 
New Mexico 

(Thousands of Dollars)(2) 
United States 

(Thousands of Dollars)(2) 

Cumulative  
Percent Change 

2008-2017 
Distribution of 

2017 Wages & Salaries 
         
 2017 2008 2017 2008 N.M. U.S. N.M. U.S. 
Total Wages and Salary  $38,337,769   $34,005,059  $8,344,886,178   $6,528,825,000 12.7% 27.8% 100.0% 100.0% 
Farm Wages and Salary  283,474   226,368  26,797,009   21,777,000 25.2 23.1 0.7 0.3 
Non-farm Wages and Salary  38,054,295   33,778,691  8,318,089,169   6,507,048,000 12.7 27.8 99.3 99.7 
         
Private Non-farm Wages and Salary  27,950,713   24,830,542  6,996,749,394   5,377,831,000 12.6 30.1 72.9 83.8 

Forestry, Fishing, and related 
activities  104,458   59,654  20,205,255   13,152,000 

75.1 53.6 0.3 0.2 

Mining, Quarrying, and Oil and 
Gas Extraction  1,581,331   1,454,840  62,606,507   62,687,000 8.7 (0.1) 4.1 0.8 

Utilities  355,914   315,839  59,040,504   48,068,000 12.7 22.8 0.9 0.7 
Construction  2,159,325   2,426,666  427,438,504   363,680,000 (11.0) 17.5 5.6 5.1 
Manufacturing  1,413,164   1,714,756  832,357,015   740,585,000 (17.6) 12.4 3.7 10.0 

Durable Goods Manufacturing  889,748   1,293,710  549,222,507   491,427,000 (31.2) 11.8 2.3 6.6 
Nondurable Goods 

Manufacturing  523,416   421,046  283,134,508   249,158,000 24.3 13.6 1.4 3.4 
Wholesale Trade  1,156,749   1,168,207  453,050,009   376,273,000 (1.0) 20.4 3.0 5.4 
Retail Trade  2,707,644   2,494,977  508,063,758   414,059,000 8.5 22.7 7.1 6.1 
Transportation and Warehousing  1,056,420   921,104  283,559,013   206,929,000 14.7 37.0 2.8 3.4 
Information  637,675   685,973  288,469,757   214,055,000 (7.0) 34.8 1.7 3.5 
Finance and Insurance  1,493,356   1,139,614  649,069,257   517,197,000 31.0 25.5 3.9 7.8 
Real Estate and Rental and Leasing  397,045   367,460  127,313,008   95,512,000 8.1 33.3 1.0 1.5 
Professional, Scientific, 

and Technical Services  4,481,504   3,813,224  852,519,510   596,439,000 17.5 42.9 11.7 10.2 
Management of Companies and 

Enterprises  362,243   304,776  268,874,507   184,676,000 
18.9 45.6 0.9 3.2 

Administrative and Waste Services  1,547,432   1,485,682  363,643,010   266,505,000 4.2 36.4 4.0 4.4 
Educational Services  344,382   308,134  149,904,004   108,312,000 11.8 38.4 0.9 1.8 
Health Care and Social Assistance  5,032,899   3,658,957  970,747,254   678,711,000 37.6 43.0 13.1 11.6 
Arts, Entertainment, and 

Recreation  247,775   194,446  95,226,506   69,669,000 
27.4 36.7 0.6 1.1 

Accommodations and Food 
Services  1,735,683   1,291,787  322,061,511   217,439,000 

34.4 48.1 4.5 3.9 

Other Services, Except Public 
Administration  1,135,714   1,024,446  262,600,505   203,883,000 

10.9 28.8 3.0 3.1 

Government and Government 
Enterprises  10,103,582   8,948,149  1,321,339,775   1,129,217,000 

12.9 17.0 26.4 15.8 

Federal, Civilian  2,233,932   1,971,078  232,420,757   188,133,000 13.3 23.5 5.8 2.8 
Military  940,179   639,371  95,321,512   93,554,000 47.0 1.9 2.5 1.1 
State and Local  6,929,471   6,337,700  993,597,506   847,530,000 9.3 17.2 18.1 11.9 
 
    
(1) The estimates of wage and salary disbursements for 2006 are based on the 2002 North American Industry Classification System (NAICS).  The estimates for 

2007-2010 are based on the 2007 NAICS. The estimates for 2011 forward are based on the 2012 NAICS. 
(2) All dollar estimates are in current dollars (not adjusted for inflation). 
(Source:  U.S. Department of Commerce, Bureau of Economic Analysis, last updated: March 22, 2018-- new estimates for 2017.) 

(The remainder of this page intentionally left blank.) 

 



 

 
 

APPENDIX D 
 

FORM OF OPINION OF BOND COUNSEL 

[Form of opinion of Gilmore & Bell, P.C.] 

__________, 2018 
 
 
New Mexico Finance Authority 
Santa Fe, New Mexico 
 
 

Re: $53,310,000 New Mexico Finance Authority Senior Lien Public Project Revolving Fund Revenue 
Bonds, Series 2018D 

We have acted as bond counsel to the New Mexico Finance Authority (the “Finance Authority”) in 
connection with the issuance of its Senior Lien Public Project Revolving Fund Revenue Bonds, Series 2018D in the 
aggregate principal amount of $53,310,000 (the “Series 2018D Bonds”).  The Series 2018D Bonds are being issued 
for the purpose of providing funds to (i) originate loans to or purchase securities from, or reimburse the Finance 
Authority for monies used to originate loans to or purchase securities from certain governmental units within the 
State of New Mexico (each a “Governmental Unit”), which loans or securities are used to finance or refinance a 
public project for the use and benefit of the respective Governmental Unit and (ii) pay costs of issuance associated 
with the Series 2018D Bonds. 

The Finance Authority is a public body politic and corporate created by and existing under the New Mexico 
Finance Authority Act, Sections 6-21-1 et. seq., NMSA 1978, as amended and supplemented (the “Act”).  The 
Series 2018D Bonds are authorized under and secured by a General Indenture of Trust and Pledge dated as of June 
1, 1995, as heretofore amended and supplemented (the “General Indenture”), and as further amended and 
supplemented by a Ninety-Ninth Supplemental Indenture of Trust dated as of November 1, 2018 (the “Ninety-Ninth 
Supplemental Indenture,” and collectively with the General Indenture, the “Indenture”) between the Finance 
Authority and BOKF, NA, as successor trustee (the “Trustee”).  Capitalized terms not otherwise defined herein shall 
have the meanings set forth in the Indenture.   

We have reviewed the Indenture, an opinion of the general counsel to the Finance Authority, certificates of 
the Finance Authority, the Trustee, and others, and such other documents, opinions and matters to the extent we 
deemed necessary to render the opinions set forth herein.  As to the questions of fact material to our opinion, we 
have relied upon the certified proceedings and other certifications furnished to us without undertaking to verify the 
same by independent investigation.  Our examination has been limited to the foregoing as they exist or are in effect 
as of the date hereof.  Our opinion is limited to the matters expressly set forth herein, and we express no opinion 
concerning any other matters. 

Based on our examination and the foregoing, we are of the opinion, as of the date hereof and under existing 
law as follows: 

1. The Finance Authority is a public body politic and corporate duly organized and validly existing 
under the laws of the State of New Mexico and has lawful authority to issue the Series 2018D Bonds. 

2. The Indenture has been duly executed and delivered by, and is a valid and binding obligation of, 
the Finance Authority.  The Indenture creates a valid pledge of the Trust Estate pledged under the Indenture to 
secure the payment of the principal of and interest on the Series 2018D Bonds, subject to the provisions of the 
Indenture permitting the application thereof for the purposes and on the terms and conditions set forth in the 
Indenture. 

3. The Series 2018D Bonds constitute special limited obligations of the Finance Authority, payable 
solely from the Trust Estate and do not constitute a general obligation or other indebtedness of the State of New 
Mexico or any Governmental Unit within the meaning of any constitutional or statutory debt limitation. 
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4. The interest on the Series 2018D Bonds (including any original issue discount properly allocable 
to an owner thereof) (i) is excludable from gross income for federal income tax purposes and (ii) is not an item of 
tax preference for purposes of computing the federal alternative minimum tax.  The opinions set forth in this 
paragraph are subject to the condition that the Finance Authority and the Governmental Units comply with all 
requirements of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 that must be satisfied subsequent to the issuance of the Series 
2018D Bonds in order that interest thereon be, or continue to be, excludable from gross income for federal income 
tax purposes.  The Finance Authority and the Governmental Units have covenanted to comply with all of these 
requirements.  Failure to comply with certain of these requirements may cause the interest on the Series 2018D 
Bonds to be included in gross income for federal income tax purposes retroactive to the date of issuance of the 
Series 2018D Bonds.   

5. The interest on the Series 2018D Bonds is exempt from income taxation by the State of New 
Mexico. 

In rendering our opinion, we wish to advise you that: 

(a) the rights of the holders of the Series 2018D Bonds and the enforceability thereof and of the 
documents identified in this opinion may be subject to bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, arrangement, 
fraudulent conveyance, moratorium, and other laws relating to or affecting creditors’ rights heretofore or hereafter 
enacted to the extent constitutionally applicable, and their enforcement may also be subject to the application of 
equitable principles and the exercise of judicial discretion in appropriate cases; 

(b) we express no opinion herein as to the accuracy, adequacy, or completeness of the Official 
Statement or any other offering material relating to the Series 2018D Bonds; and 

(c) except as set forth above, we express no opinion regarding any other tax consequences relating to 
the ownership or disposition of, or the accrual or receipt of interest on, the Series 2018D Bonds.   

Respectfully submitted, 
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APPENDIX E 
 

BOOK-ENTRY ONLY SYSTEM 

The information in this section concerning DTC and DTC’s book-entry only system has been obtained from 
sources that the Finance Authority and the Municipal Advisor believe to be reliable, but the Finance Authority and 
the Municipal Advisor take no responsibility for the completeness or accuracy thereof.  The following description of 
the procedures and record keeping with respect to beneficial ownership interests in the Series 2018D Bonds, 
payment of principal, premium, if any, interest on the Series 2018D Bonds to DTC Participants or Beneficial 
Owners, confirmation and transfers of beneficial ownership interests in the Series 2018D Bonds and other related 
transactions by and between DTC, the DTC Participants and the Beneficial Owners is based solely on information 
provided by DTC. 

The Depository Trust Company (“DTC”), New York, New York, will act as securities depository for the 
Series 2018D Bonds.  The Series 2018D Bonds will be issued as fully-registered securities registered in the name of 
Cede & Co. (DTC’s partnership nominee) or such other name as may be requested by an authorized representative 
of DTC.  One fully-registered Series 2018D Bond certificate will be issued for each maturity of the Series 2018D 
Bonds, each in the aggregate principal amount of such issue, and will be deposited with DTC. 

DTC and its Participants.  DTC, the world’s largest depository, is a limited-purpose trust company 
organized under the New York Banking Law, a “banking organization” within the meaning of the New York 
Banking Law, a member of the Federal Reserve System, a “clearing corporation” within the meaning of the New 
York Uniform Commercial Code, and a “clearing agency” registered pursuant to the provisions of section 17A of 
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934.  DTC holds and provides asset servicing for over 3.5 million issues of U.S. 
and non-U.S. equity issues, corporate and municipal debt issues, and money market instruments (from over 100 
countries) that DTC’s participants (“Direct Participants”) deposit with DTC.  DTC also facilitates the post-trade 
settlement among Direct Participants of sales and other securities transactions in deposited securities, through 
electronic computerized book-entry transfers and pledges between Direct Participants’ accounts.  This eliminates the 
need for physical movement of securities certificates.  Direct Participants include both U.S. and non-U.S. securities 
brokers and dealers, banks, trust companies, clearing corporations and certain other organizations.  DTC is a wholly 
owned subsidiary of The Depository Trust & Clearing Corporation (“DTCC”).  DTCC is the holding company for 
DTC, National Securities Clearing Corporation and Fixed Income Clearing Corporation, all of which are registered 
clearing agencies.  DTCC is owned by the users of its regulated subsidiaries.  Access to the DTC system is also 
available to others such as both U.S. and non-U.S. securities brokers and dealers, banks, trust companies, and 
clearing corporations that clear through or maintain a custodial relationship with a Direct Participant, either directly 
or indirectly (“Indirect Participants”).  DTC has Standard & Poor’s rating of AA+.  The DTC Rules applicable to its 
Participants are on file with the Securities and Exchange Commission.  More information about DTC can be found 
at www.dtcc.com. 

Purchases of Series 2018D Bonds under the DTC system must be made by or through Direct Participants, 
which will receive a credit for the Series 2018D Bonds on DTC’s records.  The ownership interest of each actual 
purchaser of each Series 2018D Bond (“Beneficial Owner”) is in turn to be recorded on the Direct and Indirect 
Participants’ records.  Beneficial Owners will not receive written confirmation from DTC of their purchase.  
Beneficial Owners are, however, expected to receive written confirmations providing details of the transaction, as 
well as periodic statements of their holdings, from the Direct or Indirect Participant through which the Beneficial 
Owner entered into the transaction.  Transfers of ownership interests in the Series 2018D Bonds are to be 
accomplished by entries made on the books of Direct and Indirect Participants acting on behalf of Beneficial 
Owners.  Beneficial Owners will not receive certificates representing their ownership interests in Series 2018D 
Bonds, except in the event that use of the book-entry system for the Series 2018D Bonds is discontinued. 

To facilitate subsequent transfers, all Series 2018D Bonds deposited by Direct Participants with DTC are 
registered in the name of DTC’s partnership nominee, Cede & Co., or such other name as may be requested by an 
authorized representative of DTC.  The deposit of Series 2018D Bonds with DTC and their registration in the name 
of Cede & Co. or such other DTC nominee do not effect any change in beneficial ownership.  DTC has no 
knowledge of the actual Beneficial Owners of the Series 2018D Bonds; DTC’s records reflect only the identity of 
the Direct Participants to whose accounts such Series 2018D Bonds are credited, which may or may not be the 
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Beneficial Owners.  The Direct and Indirect Participants will remain responsible for keeping account of their 
holdings on behalf of their customers. 

Conveyance of notices and other communications by DTC to Direct Participants, by Direct Participants to 
Indirect Participants, and by Direct Participants and Indirect Participants to Beneficial Owners will be governed by 
arrangements among them, subject to any statutory or regulatory requirements as may be in effect from time to time. 

Redemption notices will be sent to DTC.  If less than all of the Series 2018D Bonds are being redeemed, 
DTC’s practice is to determine by lot the amount of the interest of each Direct Participant in such issue to be 
redeemed. 

Neither DTC nor Cede & Co. (nor any other DTC nominee) will consent or vote with respect to Series 
2018D Bonds unless authorized by a Direct Participant in accordance with DTC’s MMI Procedures.  Under its usual 
procedures, DTC mails an Omnibus Proxy to the Finance Authority as soon as possible after the record date.  The 
Omnibus Proxy assigns Cede & Co.’s consenting or voting rights to those Direct Participants to whose accounts the 
Series 2018D Bonds are credited on the record date (identified in a listing attached to the Omnibus Proxy). 

Redemption proceeds, distributions and dividend payments on the Series 2018D Bonds will be made to 
Cede & Co., or such other nominee as may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC.  DTC’s practice is 
to credit Direct Participants’ accounts upon DTC’s receipt of funds and corresponding detail information from the 
Finance Authority or the Trustee, on the payable date in accordance with their respective holdings shown on DTC’s 
records.  Payments by Participants to Beneficial Owners will be governed by standing instructions and customary 
practices, as is the case with securities held for the accounts of customers in bearer form or registered in “street 
name,” and will be the responsibility of such Participant and not of DTC or its nominee, the Trustee or the Finance 
Authority, subject to any statutory or regulatory requirements as may be in effect from time to time.  Payment of 
redemption proceeds, distributions and dividend payments to Cede & Co. (or such other nominee as may be 
requested by an authorized representative of DTC) is the responsibility of the Finance Authority or the Trustee, 
disbursement of such payments to Direct Participants will be the responsibility of DTC, and disbursement of such 
payments to the Beneficial Owners will be the responsibility of Direct and Indirect Participants. 

DTC may discontinue providing its services as securities depository with respect to the Series 2018D 
Bonds at any time by giving reasonable notice to the Finance Authority or the Trustee.  Under such circumstances, 
in the event that a successor securities depository is not obtained, Bond certificates are required to be printed and 
delivered. 

The Finance Authority may decide to discontinue use of the system of book-entry only transfers through 
DTC (or a successor securities depository).  In that event, Bond certificates will be printed and delivered to DTC. 

When reference is made to any action which is required or permitted to be taken by the Beneficial Owners, 
such reference only relates to those permitted to act by statute, regulation or otherwise on behalf of such Beneficial 
Owners for such purposes.  When notices are given, they are to be sent to DTC, and the Finance Authority does not 
have responsibility for distributing such notices to the Beneficial Owners. 

The Finance Authority does not have any responsibility or obligation to the DTC Participants or the 
Beneficial Owners with respect to (a) the accuracy of any records maintained by DTC or any DTC Participant; (b) 
the payment by DTC or any DTC Participant of any amount due to any Beneficial Owner in respect of the principal 
of and premium, if any, and interest on the Series 2018D Bonds; (c) the selection of the Beneficial Owners to 
receive payment in the event of any partial redemption of the Series 2018D Bonds; (d) any consent given or other 
action taken by DTC, or its nominee, Cede & Co., as Bond Owner; or (e) the distribution by DTC to DTC 
Participants or Beneficial Owners of any notices received by DTC as registered owner of the Series 2018D Bonds. 
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APPENDIX F 
 

2018D GOVERNMENTAL UNITS; LARGEST REPAYMENT OBLIGATIONS 

2018D Governmental Units 

As previously stated, a portion of the proceeds of the Series 2018D Bonds is being used to finance or 
refinance Loans to be made to the 2018D Governmental Units or to reimburse the Finance Authority, in whole or in 
part, for Loans made to 2018D Governmental Units.  The 2018D Governmental Units, the revenues pledged, the 
amount of their respective Loans, the agreement reserve amounts and the maturity dates of the Loans are listed in 
the following table: 

Governmental Unit(1) 
Original  

Loan Amount

Agreement  
Reserve  

Amount(2) 
Loan  

Maturity Date
Village of Floyd (Fire Protection Fund)  $    499,265    $            -  05/01/2029 
Socorro County (Fire Protection Fund)  260,453   -  05/01/2048 
Gallup-McKinley County School District No. 1 (Ad Valorem Taxes)  6,500,000   -  08/01/2030 
Moriarty-Edgewood School District No. 8 (Ad Valorem Taxes)  5,000,000   -  09/01/2028 
Truth or Consequences Municipal School District No. 6 (Ad Valorem 
Taxes) 

 1,500,000   -  08/01/2032 

Farmington Municipal School District No. 5 (Ad Valorem Taxes)  4,000,000  - 09/01/2033 
Las Vegas City Public School District No. 2 (Ad Valorem Taxes)  2,750,000   -  08/15/2032 
Village of Corrales (Ad Valorem Taxes)  2,000,000   -  08/01/2030 
City of Deming (Ad Valorem Taxes)  1,500,000   -  08/01/2038 
Lordsburg Municipal School District No. 1 (Ad Valorem Taxes)  1,500,000   -  10/01/2031 
Chama Valley Independent School District No. 19 (Ad Valorem Taxes)  1,105,000  - 08/15/2038 
Socorro Consolidated School District No. 1 (Ad Valorem Taxes)  1,000,000   -  08/01/2033 
Fort Sumner Municipal School District No. 20 (Ad Valorem Taxes)  900,000   -  08/01/2030 
Hatch Valley Public School District No. 11 (Ad Valorem Taxes)  625,000   -  08/01/2028 
Loving Municipal School District (Ad Valorem Taxes)  500,000   -  06/15/2023 
Carrizozo Municipal School District No. 7 (Ad Valorem Taxes)  300,000  - 08/01/2031 
City of Las Cruces (Gross Receipts Tax)  9,600,000   -  06/01/2027 
Taos County (Gross Receipts Tax)  7,775,000   -  04/01/2023 
City of Clovis (Gross Receipts Tax)  4,592,444   -  06/01/2033 
City of Jal (Gross Receipts Tax/Local Special Tax)  4,401,025   -  08/01/2038 
City of Lovington (Gross Receipts Tax)  3,950,000  351,260 05/01/2038 
City of Las Cruces (Gross Receipts Tax)  1,419,664   -  06/01/2025 
Village of Cimarron (Gross Receipts Tax)  170,384   -  06/01/2025 
City of Belen (Local Special Tax)  163,728   -  05/01/2025 
City of Belen (Enterprise System Revenue)  163,728  - 05/01/2025 
Eldorado Area Water and Sanitation District (Enterprise System Revenue)  585,468  31,494 05/01/2048 

Total $62,7,61,159 $382,754  
 

    
(1) The Finance Authority may substitute other Loans and/or Governmental Units for those listed herein.   
(2) The Finance Authority has adopted a policy which does not require an Agreement Reserve Account for certain types of 
Loans including: (i) Loans less than $250,000; (ii) Loans secured by taxing power where the borrower is required by law to 
adjust the property tax levy sufficient to meet principal and interest on the debt; (iii) Loans secured by a revenue with an 
underlying credit rating of at least “A/A2”; (iv) Loans enhanced by a surety policy; or (v) Loans secured by a pledge of the fire 
protection or state law enforcement funds that produce a debt service coverage ratio of two times, and Loans secured by a general 
obligation pledge of the respective Governmental Unit.  Each of the Loans listed that does not have an Agreement Reserve 
Account either falls into one of the aforementioned categories or a waiver to the applicable policy has been obtained. 
(Source:  The Finance Authority.) 
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Agreements Generating Largest Amount of Agreement Revenues 

Information concerning the Agreements representing the five largest repayment obligations and their 
obligors is provided below. 

State of New Mexico General Services Department 

The Finance Authority issued a series of Bonds and used a portion of the proceeds thereof to purchase 
bonds for the benefit of the State of New Mexico General Services Department (the “GSD Bonds”).  The General 
Services Department applied proceeds from the sale of the GSD Bonds to fund building projects in Santa Fe for use 
by the state government.  The GSD Bonds are payable from and secured by a portion of gross receipts tax revenues 
received by the State of New Mexico and appropriated by the State Legislature or transferred to the State Building 
Bond Fund.  As of the delivery of the Series 2018D Bonds, the GSD Bonds are projected to be outstanding in the 
aggregate principal amount of $67,806,432 and are scheduled to mature on June 1, 2039. 

City of Santa Fe 

 The Finance Authority has previously entered into various obligations with the City of Santa Fe (the “Santa 
Fe Gross Receipts Tax Obligations”).  The Santa Fe Gross Receipts Tax Obligations have been used to finance or 
refinance certain infrastructure projects in the City of Santa Fe.  As of the delivery of the Series 2018D Bonds, the 
Santa Fe Gross Receipts Tax Obligations are projected to be outstanding in the principal amount of $61,551,749 and 
are payable from and secured by certain gross receipts taxes.  The last of the Santa Fe Gross Receipts Tax 
Obligations is scheduled to mature on June 1, 2037. 

City of Rio Rancho 

The Finance Authority has previously entered into various senior lien obligations with the City of Rio 
Rancho (“Rio Rancho”) of which 19 are still outstanding in an original issue amount of $100,186,660.  As of the 
delivery of the Series 2018D Bonds, these 19 loans will be outstanding in the amount of $86,188,271.  The senior 
lien obligations are secured by revenue pledges of State Fire Protection Funds, State Gross Receipts Tax, Law 
Enforcement Protection Funds, Local Special Tax (Water Rights Acquisition Fee), Special Assessment and 
Enterprise System Revenues.  Enterprise System Revenue is Rio Rancho’s largest senior lien revenue pledge with 
three loans issued and still outstanding in the amount of $53,000,000.    

New Mexico Spaceport Authority 

The Finance Authority has previously issued a series of bonds and has applied certain Prepayments of 
Loans for the purpose of purchasing securities from the New Mexico Spaceport Authority (the “Spaceport Authority 
Securities”), the proceeds from which have been used to finance the costs of planning, designing, engineering and 
constructing a regional spaceport.  The Spaceport Authority Securities are payable from and secured by a portion of 
the county regional spaceport gross receipts tax revenues received by the New Mexico Regional Spaceport District 
from gross receipts taxes imposed by Dona Aña and Sierra Counties which are pledged by the Regional Spaceport 
District and the Spaceport Authority to pay the Spaceport Authority Securities.  As of the delivery of the Series 
2018D Bonds, the Spaceport Authority Securities are projected to be outstanding in the aggregate principal amount 
of $52,690,000 and are scheduled to mature on June 1, 2029. 

Taos County 

The Finance Authority maintains four loans with Taos County secured by Gross Receipts Tax.  The largest 
loan for $22,685,000 closed in June 2018, refunding a 2011 PPRF loan that refunded two previous PPRF loans used 
to build the Taos County Administrative Complex in 2008.  A loan for $7,775,000 closed in August 2018 and will 
be used to fund school improvements for the Taos Municipal School District, Penasco Independent School District, 
the Questa Independent School District and the UNM-Taos Educational Center.  The other two Gross Receipts Tax 
loans closed in March 2014 for $358,544, used to purchase three solid waste trucks, and in December 2015 for 
$3,291,151, used for fire station improvements in Taos County.  As of the delivery of the Series 2018D Bonds, the 
Taos County Gross Receipt Tax loans are projected to be outstanding in the aggregate principal amount of 
$33,577,518 and are scheduled to mature on June 1, 2038. 
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